

NUVVE HOLDING CORP.

2,778,750 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK (For Resale) 2,707,500 WARRANTS (For Resale) 1,353,750 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK (For Issuance)

This prospectus supplement no. 3 supplements the prospectus dated April 5, 2021 (the "Prospectus"), relating to the offer and sale from time to time by the selling securityholders named in the Prospectus (the "Selling Securityholders") of (A) up to 2,778,750 shares of common stock, including (i) 1,425,000 shares originally sold in a private placement at the closing of the Business Combination (as defined in the Prospectus), and (ii) up to 1,353,750 shares issuable upon the exercise of the warrants sold in the private placement, and (B) up to 2,707,500 warrants sold in the private placement. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock or warrants by the Selling Securityholders pursuant to this prospectus. The Prospectus also relates to the offer and sale by us of 1,353,750 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, solely to the extent the warrants are publicly sold prior to their exercise.

We registered the securities for resale pursuant to the Selling Securityholders' registration rights under certain agreements between us and the Selling Securityholders. Our registration of the securities covered by the Prospectus does not mean that the Selling Securityholders will offer or sell any of the shares of common stock or warrants. The Selling Securityholders may offer, sell or distribute all or a portion of their shares of common stock or warrants publicly or through private transactions at prevailing market prices or at negotiated prices. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock or warrants by the Selling Securityholders pursuant to the Prospectus. We provide more information about how the Selling Securityholders may sell the shares of common stock or warrants in the section of the Prospectus entitled "Plan of Distribution."

This prospectus supplement no. 3 incorporates into the Prospectus the information contained in our attached quarterly report on Form 10-Q, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 13, 2021.

You should read this prospectus supplement no. 3 in conjunction with the Prospectus, including all prior supplements and amendments thereto. This prospectus supplement no. 3 is qualified by reference to the Prospectus, as previously supplemented and amended, except to the extent that the information in the prospectus supplement no. 3 supersedes the information contained in the Prospectus, as previously supplemented and amended. This prospectus supplement no. 3 is not complete without, and may not be delivered or utilized except in connection with, the Prospectus, including all prior supplements and amendments thereto.

Our common stock and warrants are listed for trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbols "NVVE" and "NVVEW," respectively. On August 12, 2021 the closing price of our common stock was \$13.02 and the closing price of our warrants was \$1.85.

We are an "emerging growth company" as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 and have elected to comply with certain reduced public company reporting requirements.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. See *"Risk Factors"* on page 4 in the Prospectus and elsewhere in any supplements for a discussion of information that should be considered in connection with an investment in our securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus supplement is August 13, 2021

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(MARK ONE)

☑ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2021

or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from _____ to

Commission file number: 001-40296

NUVVE HOLDING CORP.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter) 86-1617000 Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer incorporation or organization) Identification No.) 2468 Historic Decatur Road, San Diego, California 92106 (Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) (619) 456-5161 (Registrant's telephone number), including area code N/A (Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report) Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered Common Stock, par value \$0.0001 per share The Nasdaq Stock Market NVVE Warrants to Purchase Common Stock NVVEW The Nasdaq Stock Market Check whether the issuer (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 🖾 Yes 🗆 No Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). 🖾 Yes 🛛 No Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company or an emerging growth company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer", "accelerated filer", "smaller reporting company", and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer \mathbf{X} Smaller reporting company \mathbf{X} \mathbf{X} Emerging growth company If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. \Box Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). □ Yes ⊠ No

As of August 5, 2021, 18,626,624 shares of the issuer's common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, were issued and outstanding.

NUVVE HOLDING CORP.

FORM 10-Q FOR THE QUARTER ENDED June 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I—FINANC	CIAL INFORMATION	1
Item 1.	Interim Financial Statements (Unaudited).	1
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.	37
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.	51
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures.	51
PART II—OTHER	INFORMATION	53
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	53
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	53
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.	54
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities.	54
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures.	54
Item 5.	Other Information.	54
Item 6.	Exhibits.	55

i

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Interim Financial Statements.

NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)

		June 30, 2021	De	cember 31, 2020
Assets				
Current assets				
Cash	\$	48,062,996	\$	2,275,895
Restricted cash		380,000		—
Accounts receivable		1,138,649		999,897
Inventories		4,217,131		1,052,478
Security deposit, current				20,427
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		2,174,347		416,985
Total Current Assets		55,973,123		4,765,682
Property and equipment, net		103,385		95,231
Intangible assets, net		1,550,795		1,620,514
Investment		670,951		670,951
Right-of-use operating assets		5,253		
Deferred financing costs		43,818,000		—
Security deposit, long-term		3,057		3,057
Total Assets	\$	102,124,564	\$	7,155,435
	_			
Liabilities and Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity				
Current Liabilities	¢		¢	0.000.040
Accounts payable	\$	3,290,154	\$	2,960,249
Accrued expenses		2,283,634		585,396
Deferred revenue		502,368		196,446
Debt				4,294,054
Operating lease liabilities - current		5,406		—
Other liabilities	_	3,363		
Total Current Liabilities		6,084,925		8,036,145
Warrants liability		1,183,000		_
Other long-term liabilities		26,614		
Total Liabilities	-	7,294,539		8,036,145
Commitments and Contingencies - Note 14				
Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity				
Convertible preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value, zero and 30,000,000 shares authorized; zero and 16,789,088 shares				
issued and outstanding; aggregate liquidation preference of \$0 and \$12,156,676 at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively		_		1,679
Preferred stock, \$0.0001 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized; zero shares issued and outstanding at June 30,				1,075
2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively		_		_
Common stock, \$0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 and 30,000,000 shares authorized; 18,626,624 and 9,122,996				
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively		1,863		2,616
Additional paid-in capital		126,816,249		19,650,659
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)		18,762		(77,841)
Accumulated deficit		(32,006,849)		(20,457,823)
Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)		94,830,025	_	(880,710)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)	\$	102,124,564	\$	7,155,435

NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

				ed June 30,	Six Months Ende			led June 30,	
		2021		2020		2021		2020	
Revenue									
Products and services	\$	766,516	\$	54,325	\$	1,078,419	\$	360,046	
Grants		214,814		408,818		701,943		1,048,427	
Total revenue	1	981,330		463,143		1,780,362		1,408,473	
Operating expenses									
Cost of product and service revenue		362,658		10,808		489,886		33,204	
Selling, general, and administrative		5,269,791		868,813		9,752,531		1,717,420	
Research and development		1,689,245		665,460		2,952,195		1,207,085	
Total operating expenses	_	7,321,694		1,545,081		13,194,612		2,957,709	
Operating loss		(6,340,364)		(1,081,938)		(11,414,250)		(1,549,236)	
Other income (expense)									
Interest income (expense)		1,984		(5,455)		(595,565)		(7,330)	
Change in fair value of conversion option on convertible notes		—		3,107		—			
Change in fair value of warrants liability		(351,602)		_		70,228			
Other, net		503,676		31,184		391,561		5,656	
Total other (expense) income, net		154,058		28,836		(133,776)		(1,674)	
Loss before taxes		(6,186,306)		(1,053,102)		(11,548,026)		(1,550,910)	
Income tax (benefit) expense		1,000		1,000		1,000		1,000	
Net loss attributable to common stockholders	\$	(6,187,306)	\$	(1,054,102)	\$	(11,549,026)	\$	(1,551,910)	
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted	\$	(0.33)	\$	(0.12)	\$	(0.79)	\$	(0.18)	
Weighted-average shares used in computing net loss per share attributable to									
common stockholders, basic and diluted		18,668,009		8,778,916		14,560,862		8,778,916	
					-		_		

NUVVE HOLDING CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (Unaudited)

	Т	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended			d June 30,	
		2021		2020		2021		2020	
Net loss	\$	(6,187,306)	\$	(1,054,102)	\$	(11,549,026)	\$	(1,551,910)	
Other comprehensive (loss) income									
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes		(20,146)		(38,190)		96,603		(11,409)	
Comprehensive loss	\$	(6,207,452)	\$	(1,092,292)	\$	(11,452,423)	\$	(1,563,319)	

NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Unaudited)

	Series A Co Preferred		Preferre	ed Stock	Common	Stock	Additional Paid-in	Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Accumulated	
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Capital	Income (Loss)	Deficit	Total
Balances December 31, 2020, as previously reported Conversion of shares due	16,789,088	\$ 1,679	_	\$ —	26,162,122	\$ 2,616	\$ 19,650,659	\$ (77,841)	\$ (20,457,823)	\$ (880,710)
to merger capitalization	(16,789,088)	(1,679)			(17,039,126)	(1,704)	3,383			
Balances December 31, 2020, as previously reported	_	_	_	_	9,122,996	912	19,654,042	(77,841)	(20,457,823)	(880,710)
Beneficial conversion feature - convertible debenture	_	_	_	_	_	_	427,796	_	_	427,796
Conversion of convertible debenture	_	_	_	_	544,178	54	3,999,381	_	_	3,999,435
Repurchase of common stock from EDF Assumption of private	_	_	_	_	(600,000)	(60)	(5,999,940)	_	_	(6,000,000)
warrant liability from Newborn Merger recapitalization, net	_	_	_	_	_	_	(1,253,228)	_	_	(1,253,228)
of share redemption of \$18,629 and issuance costs of \$5,979,675	_	_	_	_	8,060,418	806	51,750,557	_	_	51,751,363
Placement agent fee paid in common stock	_	_	_	_	208,532	21	2,085,299	_	_	2,085,320
PIPE offering, less issuance costs of \$2,500 Notice of exercise of put	_	_	_	_	1,425,000	143	14,247,357	_	_	14,247,500
option Stock-based compensation							(2,000,000) 262,105		_	(2,000,000) 262,105
Currency translation adjustment	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	116,749	_	116,749
Net loss Balances March 31, 2021					18,761,124	1,876	83,173,369	38,908	(5,361,720) (25,819,543)	(5,361,720) 57,394,610
Additional merger recapitalization costs Buyback of shares related	_	_	_	_	_	_	(265,736)	_	_	(265,736)
to exercise of put option Issuance of warranties to	_	_	_	_	(134,500)	(13)	13	_	_	_
Stonepeak and Evolve Issuance of options to purchase shares of common stock to	_	_	_	_	_	_	30,234,000	_	_	30,234,000
Stonepeak and Evolve Stock-based compensation	_	_	=		_	_	12,584,000 1,090,603	=	_	12,584,000 1,090,603
Currency translation adjustment	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	(20,146)	_	(20,146)
Net loss									(6,187,306)	(6,187,306)
Balances June 30, 2021		\$		\$	18,626,624	\$ 1,863	\$ 126,816,249	\$ 18,762	\$ (32,006,849)	\$ 94,830,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Unaudited)

	Series A Coi Preferred		Common	Stock		Additional Paid-in		ccumulated Other mprehensive	Accumulated	
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amou	nt	Capital	Ine	come (Loss)	Deficit	Total
Balances December 31, 2019,										
as previously reported	16,789,088	\$ 1,679	24,542,314	\$ 2,4	454	\$17,131,913	\$	107,620	\$ (15,573,689)	\$ 1,669,977
Conversion of shares due to										
merger capitalization	(16,789,088)	(1,679)	(15,763,398)	(1,5	57 <u>6</u>)	3,255				
Balances December 31, 2019,										
effect of reverse										
recapitalization (refer to										
Note 2)	—	\$ —	8,778,916	\$ 8	378	\$17,135,168	\$	107,620	\$ (15,573,689)	\$ 1,669,977
Stock-based compensation	_	_	_		—	17,557		_		17,557
Currency translation										
adjustment	—		—		—	—		26,781	—	26,781
Net loss			—						(497,808)	(497,808)
Balances March 31, 2020			8,778,916	5	378	17,152,725		134,401	(16,071,497)	1,216,507
Stock-based compensation					—	15,421				15,421
Currency translation										
adjustment			—					(38,190)		(38,190)
Net loss					—	—			(1,054,102)	(1,054,102)
Balances June 30, 2020		\$	8,778,916	\$ 8	378	\$17,168,146	\$	96,211	\$ (17,125,599)	\$ 139,636

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

Net cash provided by investing activities7,969(22,504Financing activities—28,000Proceeds from Newborn Escrow Account58,184,461—Redemption of Newborn bares(18,629)—Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering(3,970,657)—Proceeds from PIPE offering(3,970,657)—Proceeds from PIPE offering(4,87,500)—Repartness of common stock from EDF(6,000,000)—Newborn cash acquired50,206—Purchase of stock from investor(2,000,000)—Payment of finance lease Obligations(1,989)—Proceeds from Stock from stock\$		Six Months Er	anded June 30,		
Net Loss \$(11.549.025) \$(1.551.910 Adjustments to reconcle to net cash used in operating activities 81.974 82.2978 Depreciation and amorization 1.352.708 32.2978 Share-based compensation 1.352.708 32.978 Accretion of discount on convertible debenture 116.147 - Chonge in fair value of warrants liability (70.228) - Loss on disposed of asset 1.381 - Gatin on extinguishment of PPP Loan (492.100) - Noncash lease sequence (13.01.40) 22.40.622 Inventory (3.164.653) 24.20.022 Inventory (3.164.653) 24.20.022 Inventory (3.164.653) 24.20.022 Inventory - (2.25.04) Prepried represes 0.595.105 1.40.00 Accounts represes 0.595.105 1.40.00 Defered revenue - 2.00.00 Net cash used in operating activities - 2.00.00 Inventing activities - - 2.00.00 Parchese form Sauro et oncertible notes - 2.00.00 - <th></th> <th>2021</th> <th>2020</th>		2021	2020		
Adjustments for reconcile to net hose to net cash used in operating activities 81,874 82,280 Share-based compensation 1,35,776 32,97 Share-based compensation 1,25,776 3,242 Accretion of discount on convertible debenture 116,147 - Chang in finity value of swarmats liability (70,228) - Chang on dispusal of asset 1,381 - Gain on extinguishment of PP Loan (492,100) - Noncash lease expense (1,003) - Change in ongerating assets and liabilities (130,140) 249,622 Description of status of the previous (33,140) 249,623 Accounts prevale (130,140) 249,623 Prepid expenses (130,140) 249,623 Accounts prevale (130,140) 249,623 Natured expenses (130,140) 249,624 Net cash provide the prevation and equipment - 22,001,59 Net cash provide by investing activities 7,569 - 22,504 Financing activities 7,269 - 22,504 Financing activities 7,269 - 22,504 <th>· ·</th> <th></th> <th># (1 EE1 010)</th>	· ·		# (1 EE1 010)		
Depreciation and amorization 81.874 82.200 Share-based compensation 1.532.708 32.207 Reneficial conversion feature on convertible delenture 116.147		\$(11,549,026)	\$ (1,551,910)		
Share-based compensation 1,32,708 32,78 Beneficial conversion feature on convertible debenture 427,796 32,74 Change in fait value of warrants liability (70,228)		01.054	00.000		
Beneficial conversion feature on convertible debenture 427,796 3,242 Accretion of discount on conversible debenture 116,147 — Change in fair value of warrants liability (70,228) — Gain on exinguishment of PPP Loan (492,100) — Change in operating assess and liabilities (1,013) — Accounts reviewable (131,140) 226,022 Inventory (3,146,653) 224,000 Prepaid expenses (2,209,159) (47,579) Accounts payable (3,209,159) (47,579) Accounts payable 305,922 266,844 Next cash used in operating activities (13,413,426) (73,413,426) Unsetting activities 7,959 — — Proceeds from sale of property and equipment — — 26,000 Prenceeds from issuance of convertible notes — — 28,000 — Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes — 28,000 — 28,000 — 28,000 — 28,000 — 28,000 — 28,000					
Accention of discout on convertible defenture 116,147 — Change in fair value of warrants liability (70,223) — Cost on disposal of asset 1,381 — Cost on disposal of asset (1,003) — Change in in operating assets and liabilities (1,003) — Change in operating assets and liabilities (13,164,653) 24,200 Inventory (3,164,653) 24,200 Prepaid expanses (2,29,153) (73,143) Accounts receivable (13,13,452) (73,143,143) Deferred revenue 30,3000 191,403 Net cash provide on operating activities (73,143,142) (73,143) Proceeds from asle of property and equipment — (22,504) Proceeds from asle of property and equipment — (22,504) Proceeds from Networn Sacrow Account 58,184,461 — Proceeds from Networn Sacrow Account 58,184,461 — Proceeds from Networn Sacrow Account 59,200 — Proceeds from Networn Sacrow Account 50,200 — Proceeds from Networn Sacrow Account 50,200 — Proceed					
Change in fair value of warrants liability (70.228) Loss on disposed of asset 1.331 Grin on estinguishment of PPP Losn (492,100) Noncash lease expense (1003) Change in operating assets and liabilities (130,140) Accounts receivable (31,140) Inventory (3,146,653) Accounts payable 30,890 Accounts payable 30,890 Deferred revenue 305,592 Investing activities (73,144) Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 7,969 Proceeds from Newborn Sance of convertible notes 7,969 Status and value of property and equipment 7,969 Proceeds from Newborn Sance of convertible notes 2,2504 Status and value of property and equipment 2,2504 Proceeds from Newborn Sance of convertible notes 2,25000 Status and the property			3,242		
Loss on disposal of asset 1,381 — Gain on extinguishment of PPE Loan (492,100) — Noncosh lease expense (1,003) — Change in operating assets and liabilities (13,140) 246,622 Inventory (3,164,653) 24,000 Prepaid lexpenses (2,205,173) (47,773) Accound expenses 1,355,165 14,680 Deferred revenue 303,080 191,493 Not cash port of operating activities (12,141,3425) (73,140) Proceeds from sub operating activities 7,969 — Purchase of porpery and equipment — (22,504) Proceeds from sub operating activities 7,969 — Proceeds from Newborn Storw Account 58,184,461 — Proceeds from Newborn Storw Account 58,184,461 — Proceeds from Newborn Storw Account 58,184,461 — Repayment of Newborn Storw Account 58,184,461 — Proceeds from Newborn Storw Account 58,184,461 — Proceeds from Newborn Storw Account 58,184,461			_		
Gain on exinguishment of PPP Loan (492,100) — Change in operating assets and liabilities (1,003) — Accounts receivable (13,140) 246622 Inventory (3,164,653) 24,200 Prepaid expenses (2,20),153) (47,757) Accounts reveivable (330,400) 191,403 Accounts reveivable (330,400) 191,403 Accounts reveivable (330,400) 191,403 Accounts reveivable (330,400) 191,403 Accounts reveivable (350,522) 266,844 Net cash used in operating activities (351,527) — Proceeds from sele of property and equipment — (22,504) Proceeds from Newborn Sacros 5,164,611 — Proceeds from Newborn Sacros 1,80,200 — Proceeds from Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repurchase of common stock from EDF (6,000,000) — Purchase of common stock from EDF (2,000,000) —					
Noncosh lesse expense (1,003) — Change in operating assets and liabilities (1,003) <td></td> <td></td> <td>_</td>			_		
Change in operating assets and liabilities (19.14) 249.622 Inventory (3.164,653) 24200 Prepaid expenses (2.09),159) (47,579) Accounts payable 330,800 191,403 Deferred revenue 305,522 266,844 Net sath used in operating activities (734,140 (734,140 Investing activities 7,969 — Proceeds form sale of property and equipment — (22,504 Vet cash provided by by investing activities 7,969 (22,504 Financing activities 7,969 — 28,000 Proceeds from Newborn Escrow Account 58,184,461 — 28,000 Susance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering (3,570,677) — Redemption of Newborn sons of lons (497,500) — Repayment of Newborn sonsor lons (1,432,000)			—		
Accounts receivable (139,140) 249,622 Inventory (3,164,633) 243,020 Prepaid expenses (2,209,159) (47,579) Accounts payable 330,800 191,493 Accounts dexpenses (13,414,425) (7,41,40) Deferred revenue 305,922 266,844 Net cash used in operating activities (13,414,425) (7,41,40) Investing activities 7,969 (22,504) Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 7,969 (22,504) Proceeds from sel of property and equipment 7,969 (22,504) Proceeds from sel of convertible notes - 28,000 - Proceeds from Newhorn Escrow Account 58,184,61 - - Redemption of Newhorn spaces recapitalization and PIPE offering (3,07,0657) - Proceeds from PIPE offering (3,09,0657) - Proceeds from Newtorn Escrow Account (8,142,69) - Repayment of Newtorn spaces (6,000,000) - Proceeds from PIPE offering (3,07,0657) - Proceeds from Nestor (2,000,00) - Repayment of N		(1,003)			
Inventory (3,164,633) 242,00 Prepried expenses (2,201,53) (47,573) Accounts payable 330,890 191,493 Account expenses 1,535,165 14,680 Deferred revenue 305,222 266,844 Net cash used in operating activities (13,413,426) (734,140) Investing activities 7,969		(120.4.0)	0.40.600		
Propaid expenses (2,209,159) (47,579) Accounts payable 330,809 191,483 Accounts payable 306,922 266,844 Net cash used in operating activities (13,413,426) (73,41,402) Proceeds from sile of property and equipment - (22,504) Proceeds from sile of property and equipment - (22,504) Proceeds from sile of property and equipment - (22,504) Proceeds from sile of convertible notes - (28,000) Proceeds from sile of convertible notes - 28,000 Proceeds from sile convertible notes - 28,000 Proceeds from Newborn baces - 28,000 Proceeds from Pile offering (3,370,657) - Proceeds from Pile offering (4,87,500) - Repurchase of common stock from EDF (6,000,000) - Newborn cash acquired 50,206 - Payment of financing costs - 642,000 Suppression formas (487,500) - Payment of financing costs - 75,000 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
Accounts payable 330,890 191,493 Accounts expenses 15,595,165 14,690 Deferred revenue 305,922 266,844 Net cash used in operating activities (13,413,426) (73,41,40) Investing activities 7,969 Proceeds from sale of property and equipment (22,504) Net cash provided by investing activities 7,969 (22,504) Financing activities 7,969 (22,504) Proceeds from Newborn Bscrow Account 58,184,461 Proceeds from Newborn sponsor loans (18,629) Redemption of Newborn sponsor loans (48,7500) Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (48,7500) Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (24,75000) Purchase of stock from IDF (50,000,000) Porceeds from Newborn sponsor loans (24,75000) Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (24,75000) Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (2,000,000) Porceeds from PIPE offering (30,000,00) Proceeds from Newborn sponsor loans <td>5</td> <td></td> <td></td>	5				
Accured expenses 1,595,165 14,630 Deferred revenue 305,922 266,844 Net cash used in operating activities (734,140 (734,140 Investing activities 7,969 — Porceads from sale of property and equipment 7,969 — Proceeds from succe of convertible notes 7,969 (22,504 Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes — 28,000 Proceeds from Newborn Excrown Account 58,184,461 — Redemption of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repurchase of stock from investor (50,000,000) — Purchase of stock from investor (50,000,000) — Payment of finance lease Obligations (1,89) — Proceeds from Shareholder loan — (75,000 Proceeds from Shareholder loan — (75,000 Proceeds from Shareholder loan — (75,000 Proceeds from Shareholder l					
Deferred revenue 305,922 266,844 Net cash used in operating activities (13,413,426) (73,4130) Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 7,969 - Purchase of property and equipment 7,969 - Vet cash provided by investing activities 7,969 (22,504) Financing activities 7,969 (22,504) Proceeds from Newborn Siscance of convertible notes - 26,000 Proceeds from Newborn shares (18,629) - Redemption of Newborn shares (18,629) - Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) - Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) - Repayment of Insancing costs (531,527) - Payment of financing costs (531,527) - Payment of financing costs (531,527) - Repayment of Insancing cativities 59,474,365 669,997 Proceeds from Shareholder Ioan - 75,000 Proceeds from Shareholder Ioan - 75,000 Proceeds from Shareholder Ioan -					
Net cash used in operating activities (13,413,426) (734,113,40) Investing activities 7,969 — Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 7,969 — (22,504) Investing activities 7,969 — (22,504) Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes — 28,000 — (22,504) Proceeds from Newbom Escrow Account 58,184,461 — — (28,000) — Proceeds from Newbom Shares (18,629) — 28,000 — 14,255,000 — _ Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering (3,970,657) — _					
Investing activities7,969					
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment	Net cash used in operating activities	(13,413,426)	(734,140)		
Purchase of property and equipment	Investing activities				
Net cash provided by investing activities7,969(22,504Financing activities—28,000Proceeds from Newborn Barces58,184,461—Redemption of Newborn barces(18,629)—Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering(13,270,657)—Proceeds from PIPE offering(14,250,000)—Repartentse of common stock from EDF(6,000,000)—Newborn cash acquired50,206—Purchase of stock from investor(2,000,000)—Payment of finance lease Obligations(1,989)—Proceeds from Stock from stock<	Proceeds from sale of property and equipment	7,969	_		
Financing activities — 28,000 Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes — 28,000 Proceeds from Newbom Escrow Account 58,184,461 — Redemption of Newborn shares (18,629) — Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering (12,50,000) — Proceeds from IPIPE offering (14,250,000) — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (6,000,000) — Newborn cash acquired 50,206 — Purchase of stock from investor (2,000,000) — Payment of financing costs (13,1527) — Payment of financing costs (13,1527) — Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan — 642,000 Issuance of Common Stock — 75,000 Proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 <	Purchase of property and equipment	_	(22,504)		
Financing activities — 28,000 Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes — 28,000 Proceeds from Newbom Escrow Account 58,184,461 — Redemption of Newborn shares (18,629) — Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering (12,50,000) — Proceeds from IPIPE offering (14,250,000) — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (6,000,000) — Newborn cash acquired 50,206 — Purchase of stock from investor (2,000,000) — Payment of financing costs (13,1527) — Payment of financing costs (13,1527) — Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan — 642,000 Issuance of Common Stock — 75,000 Proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 <	Net cash provided by investing activities	7,969	(22,504)		
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes — 28,000 Proceeds from Newborn Escrow Account 58,184,461 — Redemption Of Newborn shares (18,629) — Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering (3,970,657) — Proceeds from PIPE offering (447,500) — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (447,500) — Repurchase of common stock from EDF (6,000,000) — Purchase of stock from investor (2,000,000) — Purchase of stock from investor (2,000,000) — Payment of financing costs (531,527) — Proceeds from PDP/EDL Loan — (75,000) Proceeds from PDP/EDL Loan — (75,000) Proceeds from shareholder loan — (75,000) Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan — (75,000) Proceeds from shareholder loan		. ,	(,,		
Proceeds from Newborn Escrow Account 58,184,461 Redemption of Newborn shares (18,629) Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering (14,250,000) Proceeds from PIPE offering (14,250,000) Repurchase of common stock from EDF (6,000,000) Newborn cash acquired 50,206 Payment of financing costs (2,000,000) Payment of financing costs (531,527) Payment of financing costs (531,527) Payment of financing costs (1,989) Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan 642,000 Issuance Common Stock (75,000) Proceeds from shareholder loan 75,000 Proceeds from shareholder loan			28.000		
Redemption of Newborn shares (18,629) — Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering (13,970,657) — Proceeds from PIPE offering (14,250,000) — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repurchase of common stock from EDF (6,000,000) — Newborn cash acquired 50,206 — Purchase of stock from investor (2,000,000) — Payment of financing costs (331,527) — Payment of financing costs (1,989) — Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan — 642,000 Issuance of Common Stock — (75,000) Proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 Proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 Net cash provided by financing activities 59,474,365 669,997 Effect of exchange rate on cash 98,193 (11,454) Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash 98,193 (11,454) Cash and restricted cash at end of period \$ 48,442,996 \$ 2,227,585 32,6703 Cash and restricted cash at end of period \$ 48,442,996 \$ 2,		58 184 461	20,000		
Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization and PIPE offering(3,970,657)Proceeds from PIPE offering14,250,000Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans(487,500)Repurchase of common stock from EDF(6,000,000)Newborn cash acquired50,206Purchase of stock from investor(2,000,000)Payment of financing costs(531,527)Payment of financing costs(1,989)Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan642,000Issuance of Common Stock(75,000)Proceeds from shareholder loan75,000Proceeds from shareholder loan75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at not period\$48,442,996\$Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityConversion of prefered stock to common shares\$3,99,435\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$2,085,299\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$3,383\$Issuance of origen stock for merger success fee\$2,085,299\$ <td></td> <td></td> <td>_</td>			_		
Proceeds from PIPE offering 14,250,000 — Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repurchase of common stock from EDF (6,000,000) — Newborn cash acquired 50,206 — Purchase of stock from investor (2,000,000) — Payment of financing costs (531,527) — Payment of finance lease Obligations (1,989) — Proceeds from PPF/EIDL Loan — 642,000 Issuance of Common Stock — 75,000 Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 Proceeds from shareholder loan — 75,000 Net cash provided by financing activities 59,474,365 669,997 Effect of exchange rate on cash 98,193 (11,454,101 Vet increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash 59,474,365 326,703 Cash and restricted cash at end of period \$ 48,442,996 \$ 228,602 Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity — — Conversion of preferred stock to common stock \$ 3,99,435 5 Conversion of debenture and accured interest to common shares \$ 3,999,435					
Repayment of Newborn sponsor loans (487,500) — Repurchase of common stock from EDF (6,000,000) — Newborn cash acquired 50,206 — Purchase of stock from investor (2,000,000) — Payment of financing costs (531,527) — Payment of financing costs (1,989) — Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan — 642,000 Issuance of Common Stock — (75,000) Proceeds from shareholder loan — (75,000) Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan — (98,193) Effect of exchange rate on cash 98,193 (11,454) Net cash provided by financing activities 2,275,895 326,703 Cash and restricted cash at end of period \$ 48,442,996					
Repurchase of common stock from EDF(6,000,000)—Newborn cash acquired50,206—Purchase of stock from investor(2,000,000)—Payment of financing costs(1,989)—Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan——Issuance of Common Stock——Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan——Proceeds from shareholder loan98,193[11,497Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193[11,497Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at ned of period\$1,679\$Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity——Conversion of prefered stock to common stock\$3,999,433\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$3,383\$Issuance of private warrants\$2,085,299\$—Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$1,89,434\$—Issuance of Stopepak and Evolve warrants\$3,0234,00\$—Forgiveness of					
Newborn cash acquired50,206—Purchase of stock from investor(2,000,000)—Payment of financing costs(531,527)—Payment of finance lease Obligations(1,989)—Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan—642,000Issuance of Common Stock—(3)Proceeds from shareholder loan—(75,000)Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity\$ 3,999,435\$ —Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$ —Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383>Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$ —Accrued transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$ —Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 1,89,434\$ —Issuance of Storpeak and Evolve warrants\$ 492,100\$ —Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 3,0234,000\$ —					
Purchase of stock from investor(2,000,000)—Payment of financing costs(531,527)—Payment of financing costs(1,989)—Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan—642,000Issuance of Common Stock—(3Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity\$ 1,679\$ —Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 3,999,435\$ —Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$ —Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$ —Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 1,679\$ —Accrued transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$ —Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 1,253,228\$ —Susance of private warrants\$ 492,100\$ 492,100\$ —Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 3,0234,000\$ —			_		
Payment of financing costs(531,527)Payment of finance lease Obligations(1,989)Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan642,000Issuance of Common Stock(3)Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan(75,000)Proceeds from shareholder loan75,000Proceeds from shareholder loan75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895\$228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityConversion of preferred stock to common stock\$1,679\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$3,383Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$1,89,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$49,100\$49,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$30,234,000\$	1				
Payment of finance lease Obligations(1,989)Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan642,000Issuance of Common Stock(3)Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan(75,000)Proceeds from shareholder loan75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityConversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,399,435Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 189,434\$Susuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$			_		
Proceeds from PPP/EIDL Loan—642,000Issuance of Common Stock—(3)Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan—(75,000)Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity——Conversion of prefered stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$ —Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383—Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$ —Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 1,253,228—Susance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228—Forgiveness of PPL Loan\$ 492,100\$ —Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000—					
Issuance of Common Stock—(3)Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan—(75,000)Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity——Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 189,434\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 402,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$		(1,505)	642 000		
Repayment proceeds from shareholder loan—(75,000)Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity——Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$ —Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$ —Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$ —Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 1,253,228—Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$ —Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228—Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 30,234,000\$ —					
Proceeds from shareholder loan—75,000Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity——Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$ —Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$ —Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$ —Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$ —Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 1,89,434\$ —Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$ —Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$ —Forgiveness of PP Loan\$ 492,100\$ —Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$ —					
Net cash provided by financing activities59,474,365669,997Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity5228,602Conversion of prefered stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 1,89,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$					
Effect of exchange rate on cash98,193(11,454)Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity-Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679-Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,999,435-Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299-Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299-Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 1,253,228-Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228-Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100-Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000-					
Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash46,167,101(98,101)Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity\$ 1,679\$Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 1,89,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$					
Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year2,275,895326,703Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityConversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 1,253,228\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 1,253,228\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$	-				
Cash and restricted cash at end of period\$ 48,442,996\$ 228,602Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityConversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 30,234,000\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$					
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityConversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$	Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year	2,275,895	326,703		
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityImage: Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing ActivityConversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$	Cash and restricted cash at end of period	\$ 48,442,996	\$ 228,602		
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock\$ 1,679\$Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$	Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Financing Activity				
Conversion of debenture and accrued interest to common shares\$ 3,999,435\$Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$	Conversion of preferred stock to common stock	\$ 1,679	\$ —		
Conversion of shares due to reverse recapitalization\$ 3,383\$Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$					
Issuance of common stock for merger success fee\$ 2,085,299\$Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$					
Non-cash merger transaction costs\$ 2,085,299\$Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve options\$ 12,584,000\$			\$ —		
Accrued transaction costs related to reverse recapitalization\$ 189,434\$Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve options\$ 12,584,000\$			\$ —		
Issuance of private warrants\$ 1,253,228\$Forgiveness of PPP Loan\$ 492,100\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants\$ 30,234,000\$Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve options\$ 12,584,000\$			\$ —		
Forgiveness of PPP Loan \$ 492,100 \$ — Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants \$ 30,234,000 \$ — Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve options \$ 12,584,000 \$ —			\$ —		
Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve warrants \$ 30,234,000 \$ — Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve options \$ 12,584,000 \$ —			\$ —		
Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve options			\$ —		
	Issuance of Stonepeak and Evolve options	\$ 12,584,000	\$ —		

Note 1 – Organization and Description of Business

(a) Description of Business

Nuvve Holding Corp., a Delaware corporation headquartered in San Diego, California (the "Company" or "Nuvve"), formerly known as NB Merger Corp., was founded on November 10, 2020 under the laws of the state of Delaware. On March 19, 2021, the Company (at the time known as NB Merger Corp.) acquired the outstanding shares of Nuvve Corporation ("Nuvve Corp."), and the Company changed its name to Nuvve Holding Corp. (see Business Combination below).

The Company owns 100% of Nuvve Corporation, a Delaware corporation headquartered in San Diego, California ("Nuvve Corp."), which was founded on October 18, 2010, to develop and commercialize Vehicle to Grid ("V2G") technology. Nuvve has developed a proprietary V2G technology, including the Company's Grid Integrated Vehicle ("GIVeTM") cloud-based software platform, that enables it to link multiple electric vehicle ("EV") batteries into a virtual power plant ("VPP") to provide bi-directional energy to the electrical grid in a qualified and secure manner. The VPP can generate revenue by selling or making available to utility companies excess energy when the price is relatively high or buying energy when the price is relatively low. The V2G technology may allow energy users to reduce energy peak consumption and enable utilities to reduce the required internally generated peak demand. This V2G technology was initially developed in 1996 by Dr. Willett Kempton, Ph.D, at the University of Delaware and is now being deployed for commercial use as a part of the management of fleets of electric vehicles, including buses. Nuvve's technology is patent protected. Nuvve's first commercial operation was proven in Copenhagen in 2016. Since then, Nuvve has established operations in the United States, the United Kingdom, France, and Denmark. In addition to Nuvve's algorithms and software, Nuvve provides complete V2G solutions to its customers, including V2G bidirectional chargers which are preconfigured to work with Nuvve's GIVe platform. The Company's technology is compatible with several charger manufacturers both in DC (such as CHAdeMO, a DC charging standard for electric vehicles, enabling seamless communication between the vehicle and the charger) and AC mode.

(b) Structure of the Company

Nuvve has one wholly owned subsidiary, Nuvve Corp. Nuvve Corp., has three wholly owned subsidiaries: (1) Nuvve Denmark ApS, ("Nuvve Denmark"), a company registered in Denmark, (2) Nuvve SaS, a company registered in France, and (3) Nuvve LTD, a company registered in United Kingdom. In March 2020, following the establishment of its investment in Dreev in 2019 (Note 5), the Company ceased operations of its subsidiary, Nuvve SaS in France. The two employees of Nuvve SaS resigned from the Company in March 2020 and were concurrently hired by Dreev. Financial results for Nuvve SaS are included in the Company's financial results through the cessation of operations.

On August 4, 2021, the Company formed a joint venture, Levo Mobility LLC with Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP, a Delaware limited partnership. Please see Note 15 for a summary description of the key items of the joint venture agreement.

Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying audited (i) condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, which has been derived from audited financial statements, and (ii) the unaudited interim condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") regarding interim financial reporting. Certain information and note disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") have been condensed or omitted pursuant to those rules and regulations, although the Company believes that the disclosures made are adequate to make the information not misleading. Therefore, it is suggested that these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes included in the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2021, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In the opinion on management, in addition to the adjustments to record the business combination (the "Business Combination") between Newborn Acquisition Corp ("Newborn"), the Company, and Nuvve Corp., pursuant to which the Company acquired the outstanding shares of Nuvve Corp. (see paragraph below), the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations, comprehensive loss, cash flows, and stockholders' equity for the interim periods, but are not necessarily indicative of the results to be anticipated for the full year 2021 or any future period.

The Business Combination between Newborn, a Special Purpose Acquisition Company ("SPAC"), the Company, prior to the Business Combination a wholly owned subsidiary of Newborn, and Nuvve Corp., prior to the Business Combination a privately held operating company, pursuant to which the Company acquired the outstanding shares of Nuvve Corp. (see Business Combination below) was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in accordance with U.S. GAAP (the "Reverse Recapitalization"). Under this method of accounting, Newborn was treated as the "acquired" company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Reverse Recapitalization was treated as the equivalent of Nuvve Corp. issuing stock for the net assets of Newborn, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets recorded from Newborn are stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of operations prior to the Reverse Recapitalization are those of Nuvve Corp. The shares and corresponding capital amounts and earnings per share available for common stockholders prior to the Business Combination have been retroactively restated to reflect the exchange ratio established in the Business Combination.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation.

(c) Business Combination

The Company is party to a merger agreement (as amended, the "Merger Agreement"), dated as of November 11, 2020 and amended as of February 20, 2021, by and among Newborn, a Cayman Islands company, the Company, a Delaware corporation and prior to the Business Combination a wholly owned subsidiary of Newborn, Nuvve Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and prior to the Business Combination a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the "Merger Sub"), Nuvve Corp., a Delaware corporation, and Ted Smith, an individual, as the representative of the stockholders of Nuvve Corp.

On March 16, 2021, Newborn held an extraordinary general meeting of its shareholders, at which Newborn's shareholders approved the Business Combination, along with certain other related proposals.

On March 19, 2021 (the "Closing Date"), the parties consummated the Business Combination. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Business Combination was effected in two steps: (i) Newborn reincorporated to the State of Delaware by merging with and into the Company, with the Company surviving as the publicly-traded entity (the "Reincorporation Merger"); and (ii) immediately after the Reincorporation Merger, Merger Sub merged with and into Nuvve, with Nuvve surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the "Acquisition Merger").

Immediately prior to the effectiveness of the Reincorporation Merger and the Acquisition Merger, the Company filed its Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the Delaware Secretary of State, pursuant to which, among other things, the Company changed its name to "Nuvve Holding Corp." and adopted certain other changes that the Company's Board of Directors deemed appropriate for an operating public company.

In connection with the entry into the Merger Agreement, on November 11, 2020, Newborn entered into subscription agreements (the "Subscription Agreements") with certain accredited investors (the "PIPE Investors"), under which, immediately before the closing of the Business Combination, the PIPE Investors purchased 1,425,000 ordinary shares of Newborn, at a purchase price of \$10.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of \$14,250,000 (the "PIPE"). The PIPE Investors also received warrants to purchase 1,353,750 ordinary shares of Newborn (the "PIPE Warrants") that were identical to Newborn's other outstanding warrants.

Also, on November 11, 2020, Nuvve Corp. entered into a bridge loan agreement with an accredited investor, under which, on November 17, 2020, the investor purchased a \$4,000,000 6% Senior Secured Convertible Debenture from Nuvve Corp. (the "Bridge Loan"), which automatically converted into shares of Nuvve Corp.'s common stock immediately before the closing of the Business Combination.

Upon the closing of the Reincorporation Merger, each of Newborn's outstanding units was automatically separated into its constituent securities, and Newborn's outstanding securities (including the Newborn ordinary shares and Newborn warrants purchased by the PIPE Investors) were converted into a like number of equivalent securities of the Company, except that each of Newborn's rights was converted automatically into one-tenth of one share of the Company's common stock in accordance with its terms.

Upon the closing of the Acquisition Merger, each share of Nuvve Corp.'s common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Acquisition Merger (including the shares issued upon conversion of Nuvve Corp.'s preferred stock and upon conversion of the Bridge Loan as described above) automatically was converted into approximately 0.212403050 shares (the "Closing Exchange Ratio") of the Company's common stock, for an aggregate of 9,122,996 shares of the Company's common stock. Each outstanding option to purchase Nuvve Corp.'s common stock ("Nuvve Options") was assumed by the Company and converted into an option to purchase a number of shares of the Company's common stock subject to such option immediately prior to the effective time multiplied by the Closing Exchange Ratio, for an aggregate of 1,303,610 shares of the Company's common stock, at an exercise price equal to the exercise price immediately prior to the effective time divided by the Closing Exchange Ratio.

The Closing Exchange Ratio was determined by taking (i) a number of shares of the Company's common stock equal to (A) the Closing Merger Consideration (as defined below), divided by (B) \$10.00 per share, and dividing it by (ii) the sum of (x) the total number of shares of Nuvve Corp.'s common stock outstanding as of immediately prior to closing (including the shares issued upon conversion of Nuvve Corp.'s preferred stock, but excluding the shares issued upon conversion of the Bridge Loan) and (y) the total number of shares of Nuvve Corp.'s common stock issuable upon exercise of Nuvve Options outstanding immediately prior to the closing. The "Closing Merger Consideration" was determined by taking \$100,000,000, subtracting the amount of Nuvve Corp.'s indebtedness for borrowed money as of the closing of the Acquisition Merger (excluding Payroll Protection Program loans eligible for forgiveness – see Note 7), which was zero, and adding the aggregate exercise price of the Nuvve Options outstanding as of the date of the Merger Agreement or granted prior to the closing of the Acquisition Merger, which was \$4,265,785.

Additionally, the former stockholders of Nuvve Corp. may be entitled to receive up to 4.0 million earn-out shares of the Company's common stock if, for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021, the Company's revenue equals or exceeds \$30,000,000. The former Nuvve Corp. stockholders will be entitled to a portion of the earn-out shares only if they continue to hold their shares of the Company's common stock received in the Acquisition Merger through the earn-out payment date.

Pursuant to a purchase and option agreement, dated as of November 11, 2020 (the "Purchase and Option Agreement"), between the Company and EDF Renewables, Inc. ("EDF Renewables"), a former stockholder of Nuvve Corp. and the owner of more than 5% of the Company's common stock, immediately after the closing, the Company repurchased 600,000 shares of the Company's common stock from EDF Renewables at a price of \$10.00 per share. In addition, on the Closing Date, EDF Renewables exercised its option to sell an additional \$2,000,000 of shares of the Company's common stock back to the Company at a price per share of \$14.87 (the average closing price over the five preceding trading days). The share repurchase was completed on April 26, 2021 (see Note 8).

As agreed between the parties to the Merger Agreement, immediately following the closing of the Acquisition Merger, the Company's board of directors consisted of seven directors, five of whom were designated by Nuvve and two of whom were designated by Newborn. A majority of the directors qualified as independent directors under rules of Nasdaq.

In Newborn's initial public offering, Newborn issued 5,750,000 units at \$10.00 per unit. Each unit issued in the initial public offering consisted of one ordinary share, one warrant to purchase one-half of an ordinary share (the "Public Warrant"), and one right automatically convertible into one-tenth of an ordinary upon completion of an initial business combination. Concurrently with the initial public offering, Newborn sold to its sponsor 272,500 units at \$10.00 per unit in a private placement. Each unit in the private placement consisted of one ordinary share, one warrant to purchase one-half of an ordinary share (the "Private Warrant"), and one right automatically convertible into one-tenth of an ordinary share upon completion of an initial business combination. Newborn received net proceeds of approximately \$57,989,380 from the public and private units. Upon closing of the initial public offering and the private placement, \$57,500,000 was placed by Newborn in a trust account with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company acting as trustee (the "Trust Account"). On the Closing Date of the Business Combination, the balance in the Trust Account was \$58,471,961. After the closing of the Business Combination costs of \$3,702,421, repayment of loans made by Newborn's sponsor to Newborn of \$487,500, repurchase of \$6,000,000 in common shares held by EDF Renewables, and transfer into an escrow account with Silicon Valley Bank of \$495,000 to cover the balance of the Company's PPP Loan payable (Note 7), the Company received total net proceeds from the Trust Account in cash of \$47,768,410.

Also on March 19, 2021, the PIPE closed, and the Company received cash proceeds, net of \$2,500 of transaction costs, of \$14,247,500.

(d) Emerging Growth Company

Section 102(b)(1) of the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the "JOBS Act") permits emerging growth companies ("EGC") to delay complying with new or revised financial accounting standards that do not yet apply to private companies (that is, those that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered under the Exchange Act). The Company qualifies as an EGC. The JOBS Act provides that an EGC can elect to opt-out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-EGCs, but any such election to opt-out is irrevocable. The Company has elected not to opt-out of such an extended transition period, which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it has different application dates for public or private companies, the Company, as an EGC, can adopt the new or revised standard at the time private companies adopt the new or revised standard. This different adoption timing may make a comparison of the Company's financial statements with another public company which is neither an EGC nor an EGC that has opted out of using the extended transition period difficult or impossible because of the potential differences in accounting standards used.

(e) COVID-19

The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) which was declared a pandemic in March 2020, and the related restrictive measures such as travel restrictions, quarantines, and shutdowns, has negatively impacted the global economy. As national and local governments in different countries ease COVID-19 restrictions, and vaccines are distributed and rolled out successfully, we continue to see improved economic trends. However, COVID-19 and actions taken to mitigate its spread have had and are expected to continue to have an adverse impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries, including the geographical area in which the Company operates. The Company continues to monitor the situation closely but, at this time, is unable to predict the cumulative impact, both in terms of severity and duration, that the coronavirus pandemic has and will have on its business, operating results, cash flows and financial condition, and it could be material if the current circumstances continue to exist for a prolonged period of time. In addition to any direct impact on Nuvve's business, it is reasonably possible that the estimates made by management in preparing Nuvve's financial statements have been, or will be, materially and adversely impacted in the near term as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.



(f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates and assumptions made by management include the impairment of intangible assets, the net realizable value of inventory, the fair value of share-based payments, the fair value of notes payable conversion options, revenue recognition, the fair value of warrants, and the recognition and disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Management evaluates its estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results could materially vary from those estimates.

(g) Warrants

The Company reviews the terms of warrants to purchase its common stock to determine whether warrants should be classified as liabilities or stockholders' equity in its consolidated balance sheet. In order for a warrant to be classified in stockholders' equity, the warrant must be (a) indexed to the Company's equity and (b) meet the conditions for equity classification in Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Subtopic 815-40, *Derivatives and Hedging – Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity*. If a warrant does not meet the conditions for equity classification, it is carried on the consolidated balance sheet as a warrant liability measured at fair value, with subsequent changes in the fair value of the warrant recorded in the statement of operations as change in fair value of warrants in other income (expense). If a warrant meets both conditions for equity classification, the warrant is initially recorded in additional paid-in capital on the consolidated balance sheet, and the amount initially recorded is not subsequently remeasured at fair value.

(h) Foreign Currency Matters

For Nuvve Corp., Nuvve SaS, and Nuvve LTD, the functional currency is the U.S. dollar. All local foreign currency asset and liability amounts are remeasured into U.S. dollars at balance sheet date exchange rates, except for inventories, prepaid expenses, and property, plant, and equipment, which are remeasured at historical rates. Foreign currency income and expenses are remeasured at average exchange rates in effect during the year, except for expenses related to balance sheet amounts which are remeasured at historical exchange rates. Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are included in other income (expense) in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The financial position and results of operations of the Company's non-U.S. dollar functional currency subsidiary, Nuvve Denmark, are measured using the subsidiary's local currency as the functional currency. The Company translates the assets and liabilities of Nuvve Denmark into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses for the subsidiary are translated using rates that approximate those in effect during the period. The resulting translation gain and loss adjustments are reflected as a foreign currency translation adjustment in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders' equity in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Foreign currency translation adjustments are included in other comprehensive income in the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

(i) Cash and Restricted Cash

The Company maintains cash balances that can, at times, exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, which is up to \$250,000. The Company has not experienced any losses in these accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk in this area.

Pursuant to the Business Combination agreement, \$495,000 of the proceeds received from Newborn's trust account were required to be set aside in trust for the possible repayment of the Company's Payroll Protection Plan ("PPP") loan (Note 7). The Company applied for forgiveness of the PPP loan. In June 2021, the PPP loan was fully forgiven and the \$495,000 in trust was released to the Company.

In May 2021, in connection with a new office lease agreement, the Company was required to provide an irrevocable, unconditional letter of credit in the amount of \$380,000 to the landlord upon execution of the lease. This amount securing the letter of credit was recorded as restricted cash as of June 30, 2021.

(j) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of payments due from customers under the Company's contracts with customers. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of customers to assess the probability of accounts receivable collection based on a number of factors, including past transaction experience with the customer, assessment of their credit history, and review of the invoicing terms of the contract. The Company maintains reserves for potential credit losses on customer accounts when deemed necessary. Based on the analysis the Company did not record an allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2021 or December 31, 2020.

(k) Concentrations of Credit Risk

Revenue for customers that accounted for 10% or more of revenue for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, are summarized below:

	Three Months End	led June 30,	Six Months End	ed June 30,	
	2021	2020	2021	2020	
Customer 1 (grant revenue)	25.7%	*	20.2%	35.4%	
Customer 2 (grant revenue)	*	47.6%	22.9%	*	
Customer 3 (grant revenue)	*	36.0%	*	15.9%	
Customer 4 (services revenue)	*	*	*	19.9%	
Customer 4 (services revenue)	22.9%	*	13.3%	*	

Accounts receivable balances for customers that accounted for 10% or more of accounts receivable at June 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, is summarized below:

	June 30, 2021	December 31, 2020
Customer 1 (grant revenue)	12%	15%
Customer 2 (grant revenue)	22%	19%
Customer 3 (product revenue)	21%	27%
Customer 4 (product revenue)	*	10%
Customer 5 (product revenue)	*	10%

* Amount represents less than 10%



(l) Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of EV charging stations, are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Company values its inventories using the first-in, first-out method. Cost includes purchased products. Net realizable value is based on current selling prices less costs of disposal. At June 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company's inventories consisted solely of finished goods. Should demand for the Company's products prove to be significantly less than anticipated, the ultimate realizable value of the Company's inventories could be substantially less than the amount shown on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

(m) Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective asset. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred while betterments are capitalized. Upon sale or disposition of assets, any gain or loss is included in the condensed consolidated statement of operations.

(n) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of patents which are amortized over the period of estimated benefit using the straight-line method. No significant residual value is estimated for intangible assets.

(o) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets, for impairment, including evaluating the useful lives for amortizing intangible assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. If the estimated future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) from the use of an asset are less than the carrying value, a write-down would be recorded to reduce the related asset to its estimated fair value. There were no such write-downs for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

(p) Investments in Equity Securities Without Readily Determinable Fair Values

Investments in equity securities of nonpublic entities without readily determinable fair values are carried at cost minus impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or a similar investment of the same issuer. The Company reviews its equity securities without readily determinable fair values on a regular basis to determine if the investment is impaired. For purposes of this assessment, the Company considers the investee's cash position, earnings and revenue outlook, liquidity, and management ownership, among other factors, in its review. If management's assessment indicates that an impairment exists, the Company estimates the fair value of the equity investment and recognizes in current earnings an impairment loss that is equal to the difference between the fair value of the equity investment and its carrying amount.

In February 2019, the Company invested in Dreev SaS, ("Dreev"), a VIE, and determined it was not the primary beneficiary of the VIE (see Note 5). Dreev is a nonpublic entity, for which there is no readily determinable fair value. As of June 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, the Company's investment in Dreev was accounted for as an investment in equity securities without a readily determinable fair value. The Company did not recognize an impairment loss on its investment during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 or the year ended December 31, 2020.

(q) Employee Savings Plan

The Company maintains a savings plan on behalf of its employees that qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Participating employees may contribute up to the statutory limits. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company did not contribute to the savings plan.

(r) Fair Value Measurement

The Company's financial instruments consist principally of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, convertible notes payable, convertible debenture, the conversion option on the notes payable and warrants. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Company also considers counterparty risk and its own credit risk in its assessment of fair value.

The categorization of financial instruments within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The inputs used to measure fair value are prioritized based on a three-level hierarchy. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are defined as follows:

- Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 Other inputs that are observable directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities or market corroborated inputs.
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available, which requires the Company to develop its own assumptions about how market participants would value the assets or liabilities.

(s) Net Loss Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

The Company's basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. The diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by giving effect to all potential dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding for the period. The dilutive effect of these potential common shares is reflected in diluted earnings per share by application of the treasury stock method. For purposes of this calculation, shares issuable upon the conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred stock (Note 8), exercise of warrants (Note 8), exercise of the unit purchase option (Note 8), and options to purchase common stock (Note 9) are considered common stock equivalents but have been excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders as their effect is antidilutive.

(t) Revenue Recognition

The Company accounts for revenues under ASC Topic 606, *Revenue from Contracts with Customers* ("ASC 606"). Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those products or services. The Company enters into contracts that can include various combinations of products and services, which are generally distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations. Revenue is recognized net of allowances for credits and any taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to governmental authorities.

The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

- Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;
- Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;
- Determination of the transaction price;
- Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
- Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company's revenue is primarily derived from sales of EV charging stations, fees for cloud computing services related to providing access to the Company's GIVe platform, extended warranty and maintenance services. The Company also has performed certain software development services and received government grants. GIVe platform access is considered a monthly series comprising of one performance obligation and fixed fees are recognized as revenue in the period the services are provided to and consumed by the customer. The transaction price for each contract is allocated between the identified performance obligations based on relative estimated standalone selling prices.

Products – The Company sells EV charging stations either on a standalone basis or together with services such as access to the GIVe platform, extended warranty and maintenance services. When the charging station is a distinct performance obligation, revenue is recognized upon delivery. For other customer contracts, the charging stations are sold as part of a solution and are not distinct from the services, and revenue from the charging station is recognized upon completion of installation and commissioning of the equipment.

Services – Specific contracts contain licenses to the software that provides the V2G functionality for one- to twelve-year contract periods through access to the Company's software as a service GIVe platform application. The Company determined that the nature of the GIVe application performance obligation is providing continuous access to its GIVe application for the contract period. Although the activities that the customer may be able to perform via the GIVe application may vary from day to day, the overall promise is to provide continuous access to the GIVe application to the customer for a period of one- to twelve-years. Thus, access to the GIVe application represents a series of distinct services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer, and the Company has determined that for GIVe SaaS revenue, the best indicator for the transfer of control is the passage of time.

The Company has entered into various agreements for research and development and software development services. The terms of these arrangements typically include terms whereby the Company receives milestone payments in accordance with the scope of services outlined in the respective agreement or is reimbursed for allowable costs. At the inception of each arrangement that includes milestone payments, the Company evaluates whether a significant reversal of cumulative revenue associated with achieving the milestones is probable and estimates the amount to be included in the transaction price using the most likely amount method. If it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue would not occur, the associated milestone value is included in the transaction price. The Company applies considerable judgment in evaluating factors such as the scientific, regulatory, commercial, and other risks that must be overcome to achieve a particular milestone in making this assessment. At the end of each subsequent reporting period, the Company reevaluates the probability of achievement of all milestones subject to constraint and, if necessary, adjusts its estimate of the overall transaction price. Any such adjustments are recorded on a cumulative catch-up basis, which would affect revenues and earnings in the period of adjustment.

The Company sells an extended warranty contract on the charging stations, which includes maintenance of the equipment for a period (e.g., three years, five years, 10 years, 12 years). The warranty provides the customer with assurance that the product will function as intended for the period of the contract and maintenance services related to the equipment. Since the warranty provides a customer with a service in addition to the assurance that the product complies with agreed-upon specifications, the promised service is a performance obligation. Access to the warranty services represent a series of distinct services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer, and the Company recognizes warranty revenue ratably with the passage of time.

Revenue for other service contracts is recognized over time using an input method where progress on the performance obligation is measured based on the proportion of actual costs incurred to date relative to the total costs expected to be required to satisfy the performance obligation.

Grant revenue – The Company has concluded that grants are not within the scope of ASC 606, as government entities do not meet the definition of a "customer" as defined by ASC 606, and as for the grants, there is not considered to be a transfer of control of goods or services to the government entity funding the grant. Additionally, the Company has concluded these government grants meet the definition of a contribution and are non-reciprocal transactions; however, ASC Subtopic 958-605, *Not-for-Profit-Entities-Revenue Recognition*, does not apply, as the Company is a business entity, and the grants are with a governmental agency.

Revenues from each grant are based upon internal costs incurred that are specifically covered by the grant. Revenue is recognized as the Company incurs expenses that are related to the grant. The Company believes this policy is consistent with the overarching premise in ASC 606, to ensure that it recognizes revenues to reflect the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, even though there is no "exchange" as defined in the ASC. The Company believes the recognition of revenue as costs are incurred and amounts become earned/realizable is analogous to the concept of transfer of control of a service over time under ASC 606.

The Company considers contract modifications to exist when the modification either creates new or makes changes to the existing enforceable rights and obligations. Contract modifications for services that are not distinct from the existing contract are accounted for as if they were part of that existing contract. In these cases, the effect of the contract modification on the transaction price and the measure of progress for the performance obligation to which it relates are recognized as an adjustment to revenue (either as an increase in or a reduction of revenue) on a cumulative catch-up basis. Contract modifications for goods or services that are considered distinct from the existing contract are accounted for as separate contracts.

The Company's contract liabilities consist solely of deferred revenue related to amounts billed or received in advance of services or products delivered.

(u) Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of costs of material, including hardware and software costs, and costs of providing services, including employee compensation and other costs associated with supporting these functions.

(v) Contract Costs

Under ASC Subtopic 340-40, *Other Assets and Deferred Costs—Contracts with Customers* ("ASC 340-40"), the Company defers all incremental costs, including commissions, incurred to obtain the contract and amortizes these costs over the expected period of benefit which is generally the life of the contract. The Company evaluated incremental contract costs for contracts in place as of June 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020 and determined these to be immaterial to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

(w) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method in accordance with ASC Topic 740, *Income Taxes*, ("ASC 740"), under which it recognizes deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowances, for net operating losses, tax credit carryforwards, and the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.



The Company applies certain provisions of ASC 740, which includes a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit or obligation as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating its tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments.

(x) Research and Development

The Company expenses research and development costs as incurred. External software development expense is included in research and development costs except for those costs which require capitalization in accordance with GAAP. Certain research and development costs are related to performance on grant contracts.

(y) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based awards granted to employees and non-employees under the fair value method prescribed by ASC 718-10, *Stock Compensation*. Stock-based compensation cost is measured based on the estimated grant date fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period. The fair value of stock options is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur.

(z) Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single business segment, which is the EV V2G Charging segment. The following table summarizes the Company's revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

	Three Months Ended June 30,				5	l June 30,		
	2021		2020		2021			2020
Revenues:								
United States	\$	812,796	\$	272,643	\$	1,404,627	\$	836,559
United Kingdom		113,703		188,436		254,989		319,877
Denmark		54,831		2,064		120,746		252,037
	\$	981,330	\$	463,143	\$	1,780,362	\$	1,408,473

The following table summarizes the Company's long-lived assets in different geographic locations as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

Long-lived assets:	June 30, 2021	December 31, 2020
United States	\$ 1,624,203	\$ 1,705,201
Denmark	29,977	10,544
	\$ 1,654,180	\$ 1,715,745

(aa) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2021, the Company adopted the new lease accounting guidance in Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-2, *Leases (Topic 842)* using the modified retrospective transition approach. The Company has elected the package of practical expedients permitted in ASC Topic 842 ("ASC 842"). Accordingly, the Company accounted for its existing operating leases as operating leases under the new guidance, without reassessing (a) whether the contracts contain a lease under ASC 842, (b) whether classification of the operating lease would be different in accordance with ASC 842, or (c) whether the unamortized initial direct costs before transition adjustments (as of December 31, 2020) would have met the definition of initial direct costs in ASC 842 at lease commencement. As a result of the adoption of the new lease accounting guidance, as of January 1, 2021 (the date of adoption of ASC 842) the Company recorded (a) a lease liability of \$98,491, which represents the present value of the remaining lease payments of \$100,292, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate of 10%, and (b) a right-of-use asset of \$95,346, which represents the lease liability of \$98,491 adjusted for accrued rent of \$3,145. There was no cumulative effect on retained earnings as of January 1, 2021 as a result of adoption of ASC 842.

In August 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU No. 2020-6, *Debt – Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging – Contracts in Entity's Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40) ("ASU 2020-6")*. ASU 2020-6 simplifies accounting for convertible instruments by removing major separation models required under current U.S. GAAP. Consequently, more convertible debt instruments will be reported as a single liability instrument and more convertible preferred stock as a single equity instrument with no separate accounting for embedded conversion features. ASU 2020-6 also removes certain settlement conditions required for equity contracts to qualify for the derivative scope exception, which will permit more equity contracts to be eligible for it. The ASU also simplifies the diluted earnings per share (EPS) calculation in certain areas. ASU 2020-6 is effective for public business entities, excluding entities eligible to be smaller reporting companies as defined by the SEC, for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. The Company early adopted the provisions of ASU 2020-6 effective January 1, 2021, on the modified retrospective transition method, to take advantage of the removal of certain conditions required for equity contracts to qualify for the derivative scope exception. Adopting ASU 2020-6 did not result in a cumulative impact of adoption during the quarter ended March 31, 2021.

(bb) Recently issued accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, *Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326) – Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments* ("ASU 2016-13"). ASU 2016-13 requires, among other things, the use of a new current expected credit loss ("CECL") model in determining the allowances for doubtful accounts with respect to accounts receivable, accrued straight-line rents receivable, and notes receivable. The CECL model requires that an entity estimate its lifetime expected credit loss with respect to these receivables and record allowances that, when deducted from the balance of the receivables, represent the net amounts expected to be collected. Entities will also be required to disclose information about how the entity developed the allowances, including changes in the factors that influenced its estimate of expected credit losses and the reasons for those changes. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

In July 2021, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU 2021-05"), *Leases (Topic 842): Lessors—Certain Leases with Variable Lease Payments*. ASU 2021-05 provides that a lessor should classify and account for a lease with variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate as an operating lease if both of the following criteria are met: (1) The lease would've been classified as a sales-type lease or a direct-financing lease in accordance with the lease classification guidance in Topic 842, and The lessor would've otherwise recognized a day-one loss. The classification as operating would eliminate recognition of a day-one loss or gain because the lessor does not recognize a net investment in the lease or derecognize the underlying asset. ASU 2021-05 align the lessor lease classification requirements under Topic 842 with the longstanding practice to account for certain leases with variable payments as operating leases. ASU 2021-05 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 – Revenue Recognition

The disclosures below discuss the Company's material revenue contracts.

The following table provides information regarding disaggregated revenue based on revenue by service lines for the three and six months ended June 30:

	Th	Three Months Ended June 30,				Six Months E	nded	l June 30,
		2021	2020		2021			2020
Revenue recognized over time:								
Services	\$	363,366	\$	35,739	\$	530,611	\$	296,511
Grants		214,814		408,818		701,943		1,048,427
Products		403,150		18,586		547,808		63,535
Total revenue	\$	981,330	\$	463,143	\$	1,780,362	\$	1,408,473

The aggregate amount of revenue for the Company's existing contracts with customers as of June 30, 2021 expected to be recognized in the future for years ended December 31, is as follows (this disclosure does not include revenue related to contracts whose original expected duration is one year or less):

2021 (remaining six months)	\$ 379,235
Thereafter	 123,133
Total	\$ 502,368

Note 4 – Fair Value Measurements

The following are the liabilities measured at fair value on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2021 using quoted price in active markets for identical assets (Level 1); significant other observable inputs (Level 2); and significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

					Total Gains	Total Gains
	Level 1:				(Losses)	(Losses)
	Quoted Price	s Level 2:			For The	For The
	in Active	Significant	Level 3	3:	Three Months	Six Months
	Markets for	Other	Significa	ant Total at Jui	ne Ended	Ended
	Identical	Observable	Unobserv	able 30,	June 30,	June 30,
	Assets	Inputs	Input	s 2021	2021	2021
Recurring fair value measurements						
Private warrants	\$ -	\$	\$1,183	3,000 \$ 1,183,0	000 \$ (351,602) \$ 70,228
Total recurring fair value measurements	\$ -	- \$ -	- \$ 1,183	3,000 \$ 1,183,0	000 \$ (351,602) \$ 70,228



The following is a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances for the liabilities related to the private warrants (Note 8) measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021:

	Private Warrants
Balance at December 31, 2020	\$
Assumed at closing of merger	1,253,228
Total (gains) losses recognized during the six months ended June 30, 2021 included in earnings	(70,228)
Balance at June 30, 2021	\$ 1,183,000

The fair value of the level 3 Private Warrants was estimated at June 30, 2021 using the Black-Scholes model which used the following inputs: term of 4.7 years, risk free rate of 0.8%, no dividends, volatility of 88.0%, and strike price of \$11.50.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy in 2021 and 2020.

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses are generally carried on the cost basis, which management believes approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

The following table presents the significant unobservable inputs and valuation methodologies used for the Company's fair value measurements of nonrecurring (level 3) Stonepeak and Evolve warrants and securities purchase agreement to purchase shares of the Company's common stock (see Note 8 for details) at the date of issuance of May 17, 2021:

	Series B Warrants		Series C Warrants		Series D Warrants	Series E Warrants	Series F Warrants	Options
Fair value (in millions)	\$ 12.8	\$	5.6	\$	4.8	\$ 3.8	\$ 3.2	\$ 12.6
Valuation methodology		-	Monte Carlo Simulation &	-	Monte Carlo Simulation &	Monte Carlo Simulation &	Monte Carlo Simulation &	
	Black Scholes		Black Scholes		Black Scholes	Black Scholes	Black Scholes	Black Scholes
Terms (years)	10		10		10	10	10	7.50
Risk free rate	1.6%		1.6%		1.6%	1.6%	1.6%	1.4%
Strike price	\$ 10.0	\$	15.0	\$	20.0	\$ 30.0	\$ 40.0	\$ 50.0
Volatility	55.0%		55.0%		55.0%	55.0%	55.0%	57.0%
Capital expenditure forecast (in millions)	N/A	\$	125.0	\$	250.0	\$ 375.0	\$ 500.0	N/A
Probability of warrants vesting	100.0%		96.9%		87.7%	78.2%	69.9%	N/A

Note 5 – Investment in Dreev

In October 2018, the Company entered into a Cooperation Framework Agreement and in February 2019, the Company invested in an enterprise (the "Investment") with EDF Pulse Croissance Holding ("EDF"), a related party (see Note 12), in which the companies incorporated an entity under the name of Dreev S.A.S., a société par actions simplifiée, organized in France ("Dreev") in order to jointly develop and market V2G products in France, the UK, Belgium, and Italy (the "G4"). The Company licensed certain of its patents, know-how, and software copyrights (the "IP") to Dreev to develop and commercialize the IP in the G4, with a promise to transfer the patents to Dreev in the future, in exchange for an initial 49% ownership stake in Dreev.

The Company determined that Dreev is a VIE; however, the Company determined that it was not the primary beneficiary of and therefore did not control Dreev. Although the Company did not maintain control over Dreev, it determined it was able to exercise significant influence concerning the Investment. Hence, the Company initially accounted for the Investment on the equity method of accounting.



In October 2019, the Company sold 36% of its 49% equity interest in Dreev to EDF. The sale reduced the Company's equity ownership in Dreev to approximately 13%. Accordingly, the Company discontinued accounting for its investment in Dreev under the equity method at that time, as the Company was no longer able to exercise significant influence over the operations of Dreev.

Commencing in October 2018 and continuing through August 2020, the Company performed consulting services to Dreev related to transferring the IP, software development, and operations of Dreev. The consulting services were zero for each of the three and six months ended June 30, 2021. The consulting services were \$71,643 and \$254,212 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, respectively. The consulting services were provided to Dreev at the Company's cost and is recognized, net of consulting costs, as other income, net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Note 6 – Intangible Assets

At both June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had recorded a gross intangible asset balance of \$2,091,556, which is related to patent and intangible property rights acquired. Amortization expense of intangible assets was \$34,860 and \$69,719 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively. Amortization expense of intangible assets was \$26,553 and \$53,106 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, respectively. Accumulated amortization totaled \$540,761 and \$471,042 at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

The net amount of intangible assets of \$670,951 at June 30, 2021, will be amortized over the weighted average remaining life of 11.4 years.

Total estimated future amortization expense is as follows:

2021 (remaining six months)	\$ 69,718
2022	139,437
2023	139,437
2024	139,437
2025	139,437
Thereafter	923,329
	\$ 1,550,795

Note 7 – Debt

The following is a summary of debt as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

	ne 30, 021	De	cember 31, 2020
6% Senior Secured Convertible Debenture	\$ 	\$	4,000,000
Payroll Protection Plan loan	—		492,100
	 		4,492,100
Less: discount on convertible debenture	_		(198,046)
Total debt - current	\$ 	\$	4,294,054

6% Senior Secured Convertible Debenture

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement between Nuvve Corp., the Company and Newborn (Note 2), on November 12, 2020, entered into a 6% Senior Secured Convertible Debenture (the "Debenture" or "Bridge Loan") and a related Securities Purchase Agreement, whereby Nuvve received a loan in the amount of \$4,000,000 from a single investor (the "Investor"). The Bridge Loan was funded on November 17, 2020, and the Company received net proceeds of \$3,736,435, after deduction of issuance costs of \$263,565, which were recorded as debt discount. The maturity date of the Bridge Loan was May 17, 2021. Interest on the Bridge Loan of 6% per annum was due at maturity or conversion of the Note. At the consummation of the Business Combination and the related PIPE financing (Note 2), the principal and interest earned on the Bridge Loan was automatically converted into shares of common stock of the Company based on a conversion price of \$1.56, which was exchanged in the Business Combination transaction for shares of the Company. The Debenture was collateralized by all assets of the Company and each Subsidiary pursuant to the Security Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2020 between the Company, the Subsidiaries of the Company and the Investor.

Interest expense on the Debenture for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 is zero and \$52,402, respectively. There was no interest expense on the Debenture for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020.

Convertible Notes Payable

Beginning in July 2018 and at various dates thereafter, the Company issued convertible notes payable ("Notes"). The Notes accrued interest at 5% per annum. The Notes were due at various dates ranging from January 31, 2019 to December 1, 2021 (Maturity Dates) (if called) or earlier upon the closing of a qualified next equity financing, as defined in the agreement (Next Equity Financing"), or an IPO or liquidation event. In the event of a Next Equity Financing, the Notes balance, including accrued interest, would convert into shares of common or preferred stock issued in connection with the financing, at the lower of a price equal to (a) 80% of the price paid by investors participating in the Next Equity Financing or (b) a fixed dollar amount stated in the Notes contract divided by the fully diluted shares outstanding. In the event of conversion at maturity, a liquidation event or an IPO, the Notes balance, including accrued interest, would be converted to equity securities at a conversion rate based on a fixed dollar amount stated in the Notes contract divided by the fully diluted shares outstanding. On November 17, 2020, the Company entered into the 6% Senior Secured Convertible Debenture, which met the definition of a Next Equity Financing. Accordingly, as of November 17, 2020, the total principal and accrued interest on the Notes then outstanding were converted into a total of 1,529,225 shares of the Company's common stock. As a result, at both June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance on the Notes was zero.

The Next Equity Financing conversion options were identified as redemption features for accounting purposes. Accordingly, the redemption feature was bifurcated and recorded at estimated fair value. Since the Notes converted in November 2020, no amounts associated with the redemption feature are reflected in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Interest expense recognized on the Convertible Notes during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 was zero. Interest expense recognized on the Convertible Notes during the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 was \$2,213 and \$4,088, respectively.

PPP and EIDL Loans

In April 2020, the Company applied for, and in May 2020, the Company received a loan in the amount of \$482,100 as a part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security ("CARES") Act. The loan is also known as a Payroll Protection Program ("PPP") loan. The loan had a term of 2 years at an interest rate of 1% with principal and interest deferred for 6 months. The loan also was eligible for forgiveness if certain criteria were met. The Company applied for forgiveness of the PPP loan in June 2021, and it was fully forgiven.

Interest expense recognized on the PPP loan for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 was \$402 and \$1,607, respectively. Interest expense recognized on the PPP loan for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 was \$804 and \$804, respectively.

In March 2020, the Company applied for, and in May 2020, the Company received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan Emergency Advance ("EIDL") loan from the Small Business Administration in the amount of \$149,900, along with a \$10,000 advance. The terms of the loan were as follows: 1) interest rate of 3.75% per year, 2) repayment over a 30-year term, and 3) a deferment of payment of principal and interest for one year. On November 16, 2020, the Company repaid the principal and interest balance due on the EIDL loan from the SBA, therefore the balance of the EIDL loan at both June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 was zero. There was no interest expense recognized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2020.



Note 8 – Stockholders' Equity

As of June 30, 2021, the Company has authorized two classes of stock to be designated, respectively, common stock, and preferred stock. The total number of shares of all classes of capital stock which the Company has authority to issue is 101,000,000, of which 100,000,000 authorized shares are Common Stock with a par value of \$0.0001 per share ("Common Stock"), and 1,000,000 authorized shares are Preferred Stock of the par value of \$0.0001 per share ("Preferred Stock").

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors is expressly granted authority to issue shares of the Preferred Stock, in one or more series, and to fix for each such series such voting powers, full or limited, and such designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights and such qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors providing for the issue of such series (a "Preferred Stock Designation") and as may be permitted by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. The number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, without a separate vote of the holders of the Preferred Stock, or any series thereof, unless a vote of any such holders is required pursuant to any Preferred Stock Designation. No preferred stock of Nuvve Holding have been issued and outstanding.

Common Stock

General: The voting, dividend, liquidation, conversion, and stock split rights of the holders of the Common Stock are subject to and qualified by the rights of the holders of the Preferred Stock of any series as may be designated by the Board of Directors upon any issuance of the Preferred Stock of any series. The number of authorized shares of Common Stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the stock of the Company entitled to vote.

Voting: Each holder of Common Stock shall be entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held by such holder. Each holder of Common Stock shall be entitled to notice of any stockholders' meeting in accordance with the Bylaws of the Company (as in effect at the time in question) (the "Bylaws") and applicable law on all matters put to a vote of the stockholders of the Company.

Dividends: Subject to the rights of any holders of any shares of Preferred Stock which may from time to time come into existence and be outstanding, the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled to the payment of dividends when and as declared by the Board of Directors in accordance with applicable law and to receive other distributions from the Company. Any dividends declared by the Board of Directors to the holders of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be paid to the holders thereof pro rata in accordance with the number of shares of Common Stock held by each such holder as of the record date of such dividend.

Liquidation: Subject to the rights of any holders of any shares of Preferred Stock which may from time to time come into existence and be outstanding, in the event of any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, the funds and assets of the Corporation that may be legally distributed to the Corporation's stockholders shall be distributed among the holders of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock pro rata in accordance with the number of shares of Common Stock held by each such holder.

Warrants - Stonepeak and Evolve

On May 17, 2021, in connection with the signing of a letter of agreement relating to the formation of a venture, Levo Mobility LLC, the Company issued to Stonepeak and Evolve a ten years warrants to purchase common stock (allocated 90% to Stonepeak and 10% to Evolve). See Note 15 for details. The grant-date fair value of the warrants issued to Stonepeak and Evolve were; series B \$12.8 million, series C \$5.6 million, series D \$4.8 million, series E \$3.8 million and series F \$3.2 million. The fair values of the warrants are recorded in the condensed consolidated balance sheet as equity in additional-paid-in capital as it is indexed to the Company's common stock and meets the conditions for equity classification, and deferred financing costs.

Warrants - Public and Private

In connection with its initial public offering on February 19, 2020, Newborn sold 5,750,000 units, which included one warrant to purchase Newborn's common stock (the "Public Warrants"). Also, on February 19, 2020, NeoGenesis Holding Co., Ltd., Newborn's sponsor ("the Sponsor"), purchased an aggregate of 272,500 private units, each of which included one warrant (the "Private Warrants"), which have the same terms as the Public Warrants. Upon completion of the merger between Nuvve and Newborn, the Public Warrants and Private Warrants were automatically converted to warrants to purchase Common Stock of the Company.

Each of the Public Warrants and Private Warrants entitles the holder to purchase one-half of a share of Nuvve's Common Stock at a price of \$11.50 per share. The term of the warrants commenced on March 19, 2021, the date of completion of the Business Combination, and expire on March 19, 2026. The Company may redeem the Public Warrants at a price of \$0.01 per warrant upon 30 days' notice, only in the event that the last sale price of the ordinary shares is at least \$16.50 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending on the third day prior to the date on which notice of redemption is given, provided there is an effective registration statement and current prospectus in effect with respect to the ordinary shares underlying such Warrants during the 30 day redemption period. If the Company decides to redeem the warrants as described above, management will have the option to require all holders that wish to exercise warrants to do so on a "cashless basis." In accordance with the warrant agreement relating to the Public Warrants sold and issued in Newborn's IPO, the Company is only required to use its best efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement covering the warrants. If a registration statement is not effective within 90 days following the company shall have failed to maintain an effective registration statement, exercise warrants on a cashless basis pursuant to an available exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. In the event that a registration statement is not effective at the time of exercise or no exemption is available for a cashless exercise, the holder of such warrant shall not be entitled to exercise such warrant for cash and in no event (whether in the case of a registration statement being effective or otherwise) will the Company be required to net cash settle the warrant exercise. If an initial Business Combination is not consummated, the Public Warrants will expire and will be worthless.

The terms of the Private Warrants are identical to the Public Warrants as described above, except that the Private Warrants are not redeemable so long as they are held by the Sponsor or its permitted transferees. Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement (Note 2), on November 11, 2020, Newborn entered into subscription agreements with certain accredited investors pursuant to which the investors agreed to purchase 1,425,000 of Newborn's common stock, at a purchase price of \$10.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of \$14,250,000 (the PIPE). Upon closing of the PIPE immediately prior to the closing of the Business Combination (Note 2), the PIPE investors also received 1.9 PIPE Warrants to purchase the Company's Common Stock for each share of Common Stock purchased. The PIPE Warrants are each exercisable for one-half of a common share at \$11.50 per share and have the same terms as described above for the Public Warrants. The PIPE investors received demand and piggyback registration rights in connection with the securities issued to them.

The following table is a summary of the number of shares of the Company's Common Stock issuable upon exercise of warrants outstanding at June 30, 2021 (there were no warrants outstanding at December 31, 2020):

	Number of Warrants	Number of Warrants Exercisable]	Exercise Price	Expiration Date
Public Warrants	2,875,000		\$	11.50	March 19, 2026
Private Warrants	136,250	—	\$	11.50	March 19, 2026
PIPE Warrants	1,353,750	_	\$	11.50	March 19, 2026
Stonepeak/Evolve Warrants - series B	2,000,000	—	\$	10.00	May 17, 2031
Stonepeak/Evolve Warrants - series C	1,000,000	_	\$	15.00	May 17, 2031
Stonepeak/Evolve Warrants - series D	1,000,000	_	\$	20.00	May 17, 2031
Stonepeak/Evolve Warrants - series E	1,000,000	_	\$	30.00	May 17, 2031
Stonepeak/Evolve Warrants - series F	1,000,000		\$	40.00	May 17, 2031
	10,365,000				

Because the Private Warrants have dissimilar terms with respect to the Company's redemption rights depending on the holder of the Private Warrants, the Company determined that the Private Warrants are required to be carried as a liability in the condensed consolidated balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in the condensed consolidated statement of operations. The Private Warrant is reflected as a liability in the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2021 in the amount of \$1,183,000 and the change in the fair value of the Private Warrant for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 of is reflected as loss of \$351,602 and a gain of \$70,228, respectively, in the condensed consolidated statement of operations.

Unit Purchase Option

On February 19, 2020, Newborn sold to the underwriters of its initial public offering for \$100, a unit purchase option ("UPO") to purchase up to a total of 316,250 units at \$11.50 per unit (or an aggregate exercise price of \$3,636,875) commencing on the date of Newborn's initial business combination, March 19, 2021, and expiring February 13, 2025. Each unit issuable upon exercise of the UPO consists of one and one-tenth of a share of the Company's common stock and one warrant to purchase one share of the Company's common stock at the exercise price of \$11.50 per share. The warrant has the same terms as the Public Warrant. In no event will the Company be required to net cash settle the exercise of the UPO or the warrants underlying the UPO. The holders of the unit purchase option have demand and "piggy back" registration rights for periods of five and seven years, respectively, from the effective date of the IPO, including securities directly and indirectly issuable upon exercise of the unit purchase option. The UPO is classified within stockholders' equity as "additional paid-in capital" in accordance with *ASC 815-40, Derivatives and Hedging-Contracts* in an Entity's Own Equity, as the UPO is indexed to the Company's common stock and meets the conditions for equity classification.

Put Option

On March 19, 2021, the Closing Date of the Business Combination, EDF Renewables exercised its put option on the Company's common shares held them (see Note 2). As a result, on April 26, 2021, the Company reacquired 134,449 shares of the Company's Common Stock from EDF Renewables for \$2,000,000 in cash, at a price per share of approximately \$14.87 (the average closing price over the five trading days preceding the date of exercise).

Securities Purchase Agreement

On May 17, 2021, in connection with the signing of a letter of agreement relating to the formation of a venture, Levo Mobility LLC, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Stonepeak and Evolve which provide them from time to time between November 13, 2021 and November 17, 2028, in their sole discretion, to purchase up to an aggregate of \$250 million in shares of the Company's common stock at a purchase price of \$50.00 per share (allocated 90% to Stonepeak and 10% to Evolve). See Note 15 for details. The grant-date fair value of the Securities Purchase Agreement to purchase shares of the Company's common stock was \$12.6 million, and is recorded in the condensed consolidated balance sheet as equity in additional-paid-in capital as it is indexed to the Company's common stock and meets the conditions for equity classification, and deferred financing costs.

Note 9 – Stock Option Plan

In 2010, the Company adopted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2010 Plan"), which provides for the grant of restricted stock awards, stock options, and other share-based awards to employees, consultants, and directors. In November 2020, the Company's Board of Directors extended the term of the 2010 Plan to July 1, 2021. In 2021, the Company adopted the 2020 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2020 Plan"), which provides for the grant of restricted stock awards, incentive and non-statutory stock options, and other share-based awards to employees, consultants, and directors. As of June 30, 2021, there is an aggregate of 3,300,000 common shares reserved for issuance under the 2020 Plan. All options granted to date have a ten years contractual life and vesting terms of four years. In general, vested options expire if not exercised at termination of service. As of June 30, 2021, a total of 1,258,704 shares of common stock remained available for future issuance under the 2020 Plan.

Stock-based compensation expense for the three and six months ended June 30 are as follows

	Tl	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,				
		2021		2020		2021		2020	
Options	\$	810,738	\$	21,957	\$	1,063,008	\$	32,978	
Restricted stock		258,137				267,972		_	
Total	\$	1,068,875	\$	21,957	\$	1,330,980	\$	32,978	

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options. Fair value is estimated at the date of grant for employee and nonemployee options. The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes model to calculate the fair value of stock options granted for the six months ended June 30, 2021 for the 2010 Plan and the 2020 Plan.

	2010 Plan	2020 Plan
Expected life of options (in years) (1)	6.0	6.0
Dividend yield (2)	0%	0%
Risk-free interest rate (3)	1.02%	1.02%
Volatility (4)	60.4%	60.4%

(1) The expected life of options is the average of the contractual term of the options and the vesting period.

(2) No cash dividends have been declared on the Company's common stock since the Company's inception, and the Company currently does not anticipate declaring or paying cash dividends over the expected life of the options.

(3) The risk-free interest rate is based on the yields on U.S. Treasury debt securities with maturities approximating the estimated life of the options.

(4) Volatility is estimated by management. As the Company has been a private company for most of its existence, there is not enough historical volatility data related to the Company's Common stock as a public entity. Therefore, this estimate is based on the average volatility of certain public company peers within the Company's industry.



The following is a summary of the stock option activity under the 2010 Plan, as converted to the Company's shares due to Reverse Recapitalization, for the six months ended June 30, 2021:

	Shares	Weighted- Average Exercise Price per Share(\$)	Weighted- Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value(\$)
Outstanding - December 31, 2020	1,235,860	2.89	6.73	
Granted	81,775	8.71		
Exercised	—	—	—	—
Forfeited	(2,766)	4.41		—
Expired/Cancelled	(2,544)	2.73		—
Outstanding - June 30, 2021	1,312,325	3.25	6.39	13,871,041
Options Exercisable at June 30, 2021	974,127	2.03	5.52	11,480,737
Option Vested at June 30, 2021	970,941	2.04	5.51	11,441,071

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2021 was \$4.06.

The following is a summary of the stock option activity under the 2020 Plan for the six months ended June 30, 2021:

	Shares	Weighted- Average Exercise Price per Share (\$)	Weighted- Average Remaining Contractual Term (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value(\$)
Outstanding - December 31, 2020				
Granted	1,686,350	12.81	9.75	—
Exercised	—		—	
Forfeited	—	—	—	_
Expired/Cancelled	(100)	10.00	—	—
Outstanding - June 30, 2021	1,686,250	12.81	9.75	1,710,440
Options Exercisable at June 30, 2021				
Option Vested at June 30, 2021				

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2021 was \$7.27.

During the six months ended June 30, 2021, 1,640,000 options were modified to lower the exercise price by \$0.60 per share, which will result in \$246,000 of incremental compensation cost to be recognized over the remaining vesting period. The amount of additional compensation expense for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 was \$21,728.

Other Information:

			Weighted average remaining recognition
	Ju	ine 30, 2021	period
Total unrecognized options compensation costs	\$	12,504,838	3.56

No amounts relating to the Plan have been capitalized. Compensation cost is recognized over the requisite service period based on the fair value of the options.

A summary of the status of the Company's nonvested restricted stock units as of December 31, 2020, and changes during the six months ended June 30, 2021, is presented below:

	Shares	Weighted- Average Grant Date Fair Value(\$)
Nonvested at December 31, 2020		
Granted	355,046	10.81
Vested/Release	—	
Cancelled/Forfeited	_	_
Nonvested and Outstanding at June 30, 2021	355,046	10.81

As of June 30, 2021, there was \$3,568,408 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock. The Company expects to recognize this compensation cost over a remaining weighted-average period of approximately three years.

Note 10 – Income Taxes

	Th	Three Months Ended June 30,			:	June 30,		
		2021 2020		2021		2020		
Income tax (benefit) expense	\$	1,000	\$	1,000	\$	1,000	\$	1,000
Effective tax rate		0.0%		(0.1)%	ó	0.0%		(0.1)%

The effective tax rate used for interim periods is the estimated annual effective tax rate, based on current estimate of full year results, except that taxes related to specific events, if any, are recorded in the interim period in which they occur. The effective tax rate differed from the U.S. federal statutory tax rate primarily due to operating losses that receive no tax benefit as a result of a valuation allowance recorded for such losses.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, *Income Taxes* ("ASC 740"). Under the provisions of ASC 740, management is required to evaluate whether a valuation allowance should be established against its deferred tax assets. The Company currently has a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets. As of each reporting date, the Company's management considers new evidence, both positive and negative, that could impact management's view with regard to future realization of deferred tax assets. For the six months ended June 30, 2021, there was no material change from the year ended December 31, 2020 in the amount of the Company's deferred tax assets that are not considered to be more likely than not to be realized in future years.

On December 27, 2020, the Consolidated Appropriations Act ("CAA") was enacted in further response to the COVID-19 pandemic, in combination with omnibus spending for the 2021 federal fiscal year. The CAA extended many of the provisions enacted by the CARES Act, which did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. On March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 ("ARPA") was enacted in still further response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company is evaluating the provisions of ARPA but does not expect it to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements for the 2021 fiscal year.

Note 11 - Net Loss Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30				
		2021		2020		2021		2020
Net loss	\$	(6,187,306)	\$	(1,054,102)	\$	(11,549,026)	\$	(1,551,910)
Weighted-average shares used to compute net loss per share attributable to								
common stockholders, basic and diluted		18,668,009		8,778,916		14,560,862		8,778,916
Net Loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted	\$	(0.33)	\$	(0.12)	\$	(0.79)	\$	(0.18)

The following outstanding shares of common stock equivalents were excluded from the calculation of the diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders because their effect would have been anti-dilutive:

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months En	ded June 30,
	2021	2020	2021	2020
Stock options issued and outstanding	2,505,711	962,891	1,792,556	970,387
Nonvested restricted stock issued and outstanding	677,543	—	582,148	—
Public warrants	2,875,000	—	1,627,060	—
Private warrants	136,250	—	77,109	—
PIPE warrants	1,353,750	—	766,133	—
Stonepeak and Evolve warrants	2,901,099	—	1,450,549	—
Stonepeak and Evolve options	2,417,582	—	1,208,791	—
Convertible notes payable	—	150,576	—	139,624
Total	12,866,935	1,113,467.00	7,504,346	1,110,011

Note 12 – Related Parties

At March 31, 2020, the Company had accrued compensation payable to an officer and director totaling \$471,129. On August 11, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the conversion of the compensation payable into a convertible note (Note 7). On November 17, 2020, convertible note was converted to common stock (Note 7).

As described in Note 5, the Company holds equity interests in and provides certain consulting services to Dreev, an entity in which a stockholder of the Company owns the other portion of Dreev's equity interests.

During 2020, the Company engaged a stockholder for consulting services. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 no amounts were paid to the stockholder for these services. As of both June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, \$42,500 due to the stockholder is included in accounts payable in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, the Company recognized revenue of \$252,000 and \$399,620, respectively. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, the Company recognized revenue of zero and \$49,501, respectively. The Company had a balance of accounts receivable of \$252,000 and zero at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The accounts receivable and revenue were from an entity that is an investor in the Company.



Note 13 – Leases

The Company has entered into leases for commercial office spaces and vehicles. These leases are not unilaterally cancellable by the Company, are legally enforceable, and specify fixed or minimum amounts. The leases expire at various dates through 2026 and provide for renewal options. In the normal course of business, it is expected that these leases will be renewed or replaced by leases on other properties.

The leases provide for increases in future minimum annual rental payments based on defined increases in the Consumer Price Index, subject to certain minimum increases. Also, the agreements generally require the Company to pay real estate taxes, insurance, and repairs.

Supplemental unaudited consolidated balance sheet information related to leases is as follows:

	Classification	J	une 30, 2021
Operating lease assets	Right-of-use operating lease assets	\$	5,253
Finance lease assets	Property, plant and equipment, net		29,977
Total lease assets		\$	35,230
Operating lease liabilities - current	Operating lease liabilities - current	\$	5,406
Finance lease liabilities - current	Other liabilities - current		3,363
Finance lease liabilities - noncurrent	Other long-term liabilities		26,614
Total lease liabilities		\$	35,383

The components of lease expense are as follows:

Classification	I Ji	Three Months Ended June 30, 2021		x Months Ended une 30, 2021
Selling, general and administrative	\$	33,396	\$	91,827
Selling, general and administrative		2,190		2,190
Interest expense		510		510
	\$	36,096	\$	94,527
	Selling, general and administrative Selling, general and administrative	Classification H Selling, general and administrative \$ Selling, general and administrative \$	Ended June 30, 2021 Selling, general and administrative \$ 33,396 Selling, general and administrative 2,190 Interest expense 510	Ended June 30, 2021IClassification2021Selling, general and administrative\$ 33,396Selling, general and administrative2,190Interest expense510

	I	Operating Lease June 30, 2021		nce Lease ine 30, 2021
Maturities of lease liabilities are as follows:				
2021	\$	5,474	\$	3,977
2022		_		7,954
2023		_		7,954
2024		—		7,954
2025		_		7,954
Thereafter		_		1,988
Total lease payments		5,474		37,781
Less: interest		(68)		(7,804)
Total lease obligations	\$	5,406	\$	29,977

Lease term and discount rate:

	June 30, 2021
Weighted-average remaining lease terms (in years):	
Operating lease	0.2
Finance lease	4.8
Weighted-average discount rate:	
Operating lease	10%
Finance lease	10%

Other Information:

	 x Months Ended June 30, 2021
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:	
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$ 94,818
Operating cash flows from finance leases	510
Financing cash flows from finance leases	\$ 1,989
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities	\$ 29,977
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities	\$

Disclosures related to periods prior to adoption of ASU 2016-02

Rent expenses paid for the year ended December 31, 2020, was \$334,350.

The minimum annual payments under operating leases as of December 31, 2020 through September 2021 was \$139,843.

Main Office Lease

On May 16, 2021, the Company entered into a ten years lease for an additional 10,250 rentable square feet for its main office facilities in San Diego, California. The lease terms include 3% annual fixed increases in the base rental payment. Also, the lease requires the Company to pay operating expenses such as utilities, real estate taxes, insurance, and repairs. The estimated commencement date for the lease is December 1, 2021. The monthly base rent will be abated for the second through and including the eleventh full calendar months of the term and the Company's pro rata share of certain operating expenses will be abated for the first twelve full calendar months of the lease term. The Company was required to provide an irrevocable, unconditional letter of credit in the amount of \$380,000 to the landlord upon execution of the lease, and this amount was recorded as restricted cash.

The following is a maturity analysis of the annual undiscounted cash flows under the new main office lease for years ended December 31:

2021	\$ 41,513
2022	84,270
2023	514,377
2024	529,809
2025	545,703
Thereafter	3,579,935
	\$ 5,295,607

Note 14 – Commitments and Contingencies

Deferred Compensation

The Company has deferred compensation for two of its founders earned during the first five years of the Company's operations, which is payable upon successful completion of a purchase of the Company or an initial public offering. As a result, the Company is committed to pay one of the founders an amount equivalent to 1% of the value of the Company as of the date the Merger transaction closes, which amounted to approximately \$1,548,347. The Company is committed to pay the other founder an amount equivalent to 100% of his current base salary at the date the Merger transaction closes, which amounts to approximately 260,000. No deferred compensation amount was accrued at December 31, 2020 related to these commitments as they were contingent upon the successful close of the Merger transaction. The Company accrued \$1,808,347 in compensation expense related to these payments during the three months ended March 2021. The deferred compensation was paid to the founders in April 2021.

(b) Legal Matters

The Company is subject to various claims and legal proceedings covering matters that arise in the ordinary course of its business activities, including product liability claims. Management believes that any liability that may ultimately result from the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

(c) Research Agreement

Effective September 1, 2016, the Company is party to a research agreement with a third party, which is also a Company stockholder, whereby the third party will perform research activity as specified annually by the Company. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company paid a minimum of \$400,000 annually in equal quarterly installments. For the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, \$200,000 and \$166,667 were paid under the research agreement, respectively. At June 30, 2021, \$66,667 was outstanding and payable under the agreement.

(d) In-Licensing

The Company is a party to a licensing agreement for non-exclusive rights to intellectual property which will expire at the later of the date at which the last patent underlying the intellectual property expires or 20 years from the sale of the first licensed product. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company will pay up to an aggregate of \$700,000 in royalties upon achievement of certain milestones. As of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, no royalty expenses had been incurred under this agreement.

In November 2017, the Company executed an agreement ("IP Acquisition Agreement") with the University of Delaware (Seller) whereby all right, title, and interest in the licensed intellectual property was assigned to the Company in exchange for an upfront fee of \$500,000 and common shares valued at \$1,491,556. The total acquisition cost of \$1,991,556 was capitalized and is being amortized over the fifteen years expected life of the patents underlying the intellectual property. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company will pay up to an aggregate \$7,500,000 in royalties to the Seller upon achievement of milestones, related to the aggregate number of vehicles that have had access to the Company's GIVe platform system for a period of at least six consecutive months, and for which the Company has received monetary consideration for such access pursuant to a subscription or other similar agreement with the vehicle's owner as follows:

	Milestone	
	Payment	
Milestone Event: Aggregated Vehicles		Amount
10,000	\$	500,000
20,000		750,000
40,000		750,000
60,000		750,000
80,000		750,000
100,000		1,000,000
200,000		1,000,000
250,000		2,000,000
	\$	7,500,000

The Seller will retain a non-exclusive, royalty-free license, to utilize the intellectual property solely for research and education purposes. As of June 30, 2021, no royalty expenses had been incurred under this agreement.

(e) Investment

The Company is committed to possible future additional contributions to the Investment in Dreev (Note 5) in the amount of \$270,000.

(f) Reimbursement of Legal Fees

On October 5, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with an investor whereby the Company agreed to reimburse the investor for certain legal fees, up to approximately \$96,000, associated with a license agreement between the parties. The reimbursement is payable upon the completion by the Company of an equity financing or the completion of the licensing agreement. No legal fees have been accrued or paid under this agreement through June 30, 2021.

Note 15 – Joint Venture

Stonepeak and Evolve Initial Term Sheet

On May 17, 2021, the Company entered into a letter agreement (the "Letter Agreement") with Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership ("Stonepeak"), and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP, a Delaware limited partnership ("Evolve"), relating to the proposed formation of a venture, Levo Mobility LLC ("Levo," and such proposed venture, the "Proposed Transaction"). Pursuant to the Letter Agreement, the parties agreed to negotiate in good faith to finalize and enter into definitive agreements for the Proposed Transaction.

Under the terms of Proposed Transaction, Levo will utilize the Company's proprietary V2G technology and the capital from Stonepeak and Evolve to help accelerate the deployment of electric fleets, including zero-emission electric school buses for school districts nationwide through "V2G hubs" and Transportation as a Service (TaaS). If consummated on the proposed terms, Stonepeak and Evolve will fund acquisition and construction costs up to an aggregate capital commitment of \$750 million. They will have the option to upsize their capital commitments when Levo has entered into contracts with third parties for \$500 million in aggregate capital expenditures.

In connection with the signing of the Letter Agreement, the Company issued to Stonepeak and Evolve the following ten years warrants (the "Warrants") to purchase common stock (allocated 90% to Stonepeak and 10% to Evolve):

- Series B warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock, at an exercise price of \$10.00 per share, which are fully vested upon issuance,
- Series C warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock, at an exercise price of \$15.00 per share, which are vested as to 50% of the shares upon issuance and vest as to the remaining 50% when Levo has entered into contracts with third parties for \$125 million in aggregate capital expenditures,
- Series D warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock, at an exercise price of \$20.00 per share, which are vested as to 50% of the shares upon issuance and vest as to the remaining 50% when Levo has entered into contracts with third parties for \$250 million in aggregate capital expenditures,
- Series E warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock, at an exercise price of \$30.00 per share, which are vested as to 50% of the shares upon issuance and vest as to the remaining 50% when Levo has entered into contracts with third parties for \$375 million in aggregate capital expenditures, and
- Series F warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock, at an exercise price of \$40.00 per share, which are vested as to 50% of the shares upon issuance and vest as to the remaining 50% when Levo has entered into contracts with third parties for \$500 million in aggregate capital expenditures.

The warrants may be exercised at any time on or after the date that is 180 days after the applicable vesting date.

In connection with the signing of the Letter Agreement, the Company also entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "SPA") and a Registration Rights Agreement (the "RRA") with Stonepeak and Evolve.

- Under the SPA, from time to time between November 13, 2021 and November 17, 2028, Stonepeak and Evolve may elect, in their sole discretion, to purchase up to an aggregate of \$250 million in shares of the Company's common stock at a purchase price of \$50.00 per share (allocated 90% to Stonepeak and 10% to Evolve). The SPA includes customary representations and warranties and closing conditions and customary indemnification provisions. In addition, Stonepeak and Evolve may elect to purchase shares under the SPA on a cashless basis in the event of a change of control of the Company.
- Under the RRA, the Company granted Stonepeak and Evolve demand and piggyback registration rights relating to the sale of the Warrants and the shares of the Company's common stock issuable pursuant to the Warrants and the SPA.

The Letter Agreement further requires that the Company use its reasonable best efforts to obtain stockholder approval of the issuance of shares of the Company's common stock under the Warrants and SPA. On June 30, 2021, the stockholders of the Company, at a special meeting, approved the issuance of shares of the Company's common stock under the Warrants and SPA.

NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Stonepeak and Evolve Definitive Agreement

On August 4, 2021, the Company formed a joint venture, Levo Mobility LLC ("<u>Levo</u>," and such joint venture, the "<u>Levo Joint V</u>enture"), with Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership ("Stonepeak"), and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP, a Delaware limited partnership ("Evolve," and together with Stonepeak, the "Investors").

In connection with the Levo Joint Venture, on August 4, 2021, (the "Joint Venture Date"), the Company's wholly owned operating subsidiary, Nuvve Corporation ("Nuvve"), Stonepeak and Evolve entered into an Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo (the "Levo LLCA"); the Company and Levo entered into a Development Services Agreement (the "DSA"); the Company, Stonepeak, Evolve and Levo entered into a Parent Letter Agreement (the "PLA"); the Company and Stonepeak entered into a Board Rights Agreement (the "BRA"); and the Company and Levo entered into an Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement (the "IP License and Escrow Agreement"). The terms of the agreements were substantially consistent the proposed terms set forth in the letter agreement between the parties signed on May 17, 2021.

Pursuant to the Levo LLCA, Stonepeak and Evolve plan to make capital contributions to Levo in an aggregate amount of up to \$750.0 million (which may be increased up to \$1.0 billion) to finance Levo's business.

Levo LLCA

The Levo LLCA governs the affairs of Levo and the conduct of its business.

The membership interests authorized by the Levo LLCA consist of Class A Common Units, Class B Preferred Units, Class C Common Units and Class D Incentive Units. On the Joint Venture Date and the signing of the Levo LLCA, Levo issued 510,000 Class A Common Units to the Company, 2,801 Class B Preferred Units to Stonepeak and Evolve, and 490,000 Class C Common Units to Stonepeak and Evolve. Stonepeak and Evolve agreed to pay to Levo an aggregate purchase price of \$2.8 million for the Class B Preferred Units and the Class C Common Units. Stonepeak and Evolve will receive additional Class B Preferred Units for each \$1,000 in additional capital contributions made by them.

The Class B Preferred Units have an initial liquidation preference of \$1,000 per unit and are entitled to cumulative preferred distributions at a rate of 8.0% of the liquidation preference per annum, payable quarterly. Available cash will be distributed quarterly, first, to the Class B Preferred Unit holders to pay the preferred distributions for such quarter; second, to the Class B Preferred Unit holders to pay all amounts due and unpaid on such units (including accumulated and unpaid preferred distributions); third, until the liquidation preference of the Class B Preferred Units is reduced to \$1.0, to the both Class B Preferred Unit holders and the Common Unit holders, with the percentage allocation between them varying based on a leverage ratio; and thereafter, to the Class B Preferred Units. Until the completion of the first full twelve fiscal quarters after Stonepeak and Evolve have made aggregate capital contributions of at least \$50.0 million, Levo may elect to pay the preferred distributions in cash or in kind.

The Class D Incentive Units are profits interests intended to provide incentives to certain key employees and service providers of Levo, its members and its affiliates. The Class D Incentive Unit holders will receive certain distributions from and after the time that the Class B Preferred Unit holders have received a target return on their investment and the Common Unit holders have received a return of their capital contributions.

At the earliest to occur of August 4, 2028, a fundamental change (which includes, for example, a change of control of the Company or Nuvve, certain changes in ownership of Levo, a sale of all or substantially all of Levo's assets, or an initial public offering or direct listing of Levo) (a "Fundamental Change") or a trigger event (which includes, for example, a failure to pay quarterly distributions or a material breach by us of our obligations under the transaction documents) (a "Trigger Event"), Stonepeak will have the option to cause Levo to redeem the Class B Preferred Units in whole or in part from time to time at a redemption price equal to the greater of the liquidation preference, a price based on a 12.5% internal rate of return, and a price based on a 1.55 multiple on invested capital.



NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

At any time following the earliest to occur of August 4, 2028 and a Trigger Event, Stonepeak has the right to cause a sale of Levo. In addition, at any time following the earliest to occur of August 4, 2023, the date on which Levo has entered into contracts with third parties to spend at least \$500.0 million in aggregate capital expenditures, and a Trigger Event, Stonepeak has the right to effect an underwritten initial public offering of Levo.

Levo will be managed by a board of managers consisting of nine managers, of whom (i) five will be appointed by Nuvve, (ii) for so long as any Class B Preferred Units remain outstanding or Stonepeak owns at least 10.0% or more of the issued and outstanding Common Units, three will be appointed by Stonepeak, and (iii) one will be an independent manager. For so long as Evolve owns more than 2.0% of the issued and outstanding Common Units, Evolve will have the right to designate one person to act as an observer at all meetings of the board of managers, subject to certain limited exceptions. Certain specified actions will require the approval of at least one of the Stonepeak managers, the representative of the Class B Preferred Unit holders and/or Evolve.

The Company and its affiliates are required to present to Levo all investment or business opportunities in North America they become aware of and desire to pursue, to the extent such investment or business opportunities are within the scope of, primarily relate to or compete with, Levo's business, and shall not pursue any such business opportunity, subject to certain exceptions, during the period ending on the earliest to occur of the funding of the full commitment amount (generally \$750.0 million, subject to increase or decrease in accordance with the Levo LLCA), the end of the commitment period (generally August 4, 2024, subject to reduction or extension in certain circumstances) or a monetization event (including, for example, an underwritten initial public offering or sale of Levo).

The Levo LLCA includes other customary provisions for an agreement of its type, including tag-along rights, a right of first offer on transfers, and dragalong rights.

DSA

Under the DSA, the Company or one of its affiliates will provide certain services to Levo and its subsidiaries, including operational, commercial, research and development, engineering, business development, legal, regulatory, accounting, treasury, and finance services.

As payment for the services, for the initial development period commencing on August 4, 2021 and running through the date that Levo has entered into contracts with third parties to spend at least \$25.0 million, in the aggregate, of capital expenditures relating to qualifying business opportunities, Levo will pay the Company an amount equal to 49.0% of its budgeted out-of-pocket and general and administrative expenses allocable to the provision of the services, and a fixed monthly general and administrative fee. After the expiration of the initial development period, Levo will pay the Company an amount equal to 100.0% of its budgeted out-of-pocket and general and administrative expenses allocable to the provision of the services, and a fixed monthly general and administrative expenses allocable to the provision of the services, and a fixed monthly general and administrative fee.

The DSA may be terminated under certain conditions, including by Levo for convenience upon 30 days' written notice, by either party upon written notice to the other party upon a material uncured breach of the DSA, by the Company on 90 days' written notice if no business opportunities have been approved during the commitment period under the Levo LLCA, or by either party upon 30 days' notice following the earliest of the 3rd anniversary of Levo's initial public offering, the 3rd anniversary of the date the Comapny ceases to own any Levo equity interests, and the 5th anniversary of the date the Comapny ceases to have the right to designate a majority of Levo's board of managers.

PLA

The PLA includes, among other provisions, certain restrictive covenants with respect to Levo's business, including a business opportunities covenant applicable to the Company that is identical to the one in the Levo LLCA described above, and a covenant granting Stonepeak a right of first offer to participate in certain future financing transactions of Levo. In addition, the Company agreed to reimburse each of Stonepeak and Evolve for a portion of their out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the due diligence, documentation and negotiation of the agreements.



NUVVE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BRA

Under the BRA, so long as the Investors beneficially own any Class B Preferred Units or at least 10.0% of the Company's common stock, Stonepeak has the right to designate two individuals to act as observers at all meetings of the Company's board of directors. In addition, for so long as the Investors beneficially own at least 10.0% of the Company's common stock, Stonepeak has the right to designate one individual for appointment as a member of the Company's board of directors and as a member of one committee of the board of directors (or two committees, if the Investors beneficially own at least 15.0% of the Company's common stock, or all committees, if the Investors beneficially own at least 25.0% of the Company's common stock). Any such designee must meet certain qualification requirements.

IP License and Escrow Agreement

The IP License and Escrow Agreement provides that (i) certain intellectual property of the Company used in Levo's business will be deposited into escrow, to be released to Levo upon the occurrence of certain specified release events (including, for example, certain circumstances in which the Company ceases to provide the services under the DSA and certain bankruptcy-related events), and (ii) the Company will grant a license to such intellectual property to Levo, which may be exercised solely after the occurrence of one of the specified release events.

If (i) one of the specified release events has occurred, (ii) Stonepeak and Evolve have made capital contributions to Levo of at least \$1.0 billion in respect of Class B Preferred Units or the commitment period has expired, and (iii) the Company and its

subsidiaries no longer own any equity interests in Levo, from and after such time and for so long as the license subsists and the intellectual property remains proprietary, Levo shall pay the Company (or its successor) a royalty on all vehicle-to-grid net revenue generated by or on behalf of or otherwise attributable to Levo and its affiliates and sublicensees from assets acquired or developed by Levo and its sublicensees.

The foregoing summaries of the Levo LLCA, the DSA, the BRA and the IP License and Escrow Agreement are qualified in their entirety by reference to the text of such agreements. Please refer to Exhibit 10.17, Exhibit 10.18, Exhibit 10.19, Exhibit 10.20 and Exhibit 10.21 in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the full text of the agreements.

Reimbursement of Out-of-Pocket Expenses

As part of the transaction agreement, the Company is responsible for the first \$900,000 of Stonepeak's out-of-pocket expenses, and the first \$100,000 of Evolve's out-of-pocket expenses. To the extent that the out-of-pocket expenses exceed those levels, Levo would bear all excess amounts.

In addition, the Company is responsible for its own Levo related expenses for the first \$1.0 million, and expenses above those levels will be borne by Levo. As of June 30, 2021, the Company has incurred and recorded in deferred financing costs \$1.0 million towards the responsible for its own Levo related expenses.

Note 16 - Subsequent Events

On August 4, 2021, the Company formed a joint venture, Levo Mobility LLC with Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP, a Delaware limited partnership.

Please see Note 15 for a summary description of the key items of the joint venture agreement. Also, please refer to Exhibit 10.17, Exhibit 10.18, Exhibit 10.19, Exhibit 10.20 and Exhibit 10.21 in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the full text of the agreements.

36

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this "Quarterly Report") includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Forward-looking statements provide current expectations of future events based on certain assumptions and include any statement that does not directly relate to any historical or current fact. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may," "should," "could," "would," "expect," "plan," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "continue," or the negative of such terms or other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and the Company's actual results may differ significantly from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. Factors that might cause or contribute to such a discrepancy include, but are not limited to, those described in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").

References in this Quarterly Report to "we," "us" and "our" and to "Nuvve" and the "Company" are to Nuvve Holding Corp. and its subsidiaries.

The following discussion and analysis of the Company's financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report.

Overview

Nuvve is a green energy technology company that provides, directly and through business ventures with its partners, a globally-available, commercial V2G technology platform that enables EV batteries to store and resell unused energy back to the local electric grid and provide other grid services. Its proprietary V2G technology — Nuvve's Grid Integrated Vehicle (GIVe) platform — has the potential to refuel the next generation of EV fleets through cutting-edge, bi-directional charging solutions.

Nuvve's proprietary V2G technology enables it to link multiple EV batteries into a virtual power plant to provide bi-directional services to the electrical grid. Nuvve's GIVe software platform was created to harness capacity from "loads" at the edge of the distribution grid (i.e., coalitions of aggregated EVs and small stationary batteries) in a qualified, controlled and secure manner to provide many of the grid services offered by conventional generation sources (i.e., coal and natural gas plants). Nuvve's current addressable energy and capacity markets include grid services such as frequency regulation, demand charge management, demand response, energy optimization, distribution grid services and energy arbitrage.

Nuvve's customers and partners include owner/operators of light duty fleets, heavy duty fleets (including school buses), automotive manufacturers, charge point operators, and strategic partners (via joint ventures, other business ventures and special purpose financial vehicles). Nuvve also operates a small number of company-owned charging stations serving as demonstration projects funded by government grants. Nuvve expects growth in company-owned charging stations and the related government grant funding to continue, but for such projects to constitute a declining percentage of its future business as its commercial operations expand.

Nuvve offers its customers networked charging stations, infrastructure, software, professional services, support, monitoring and parts and labor warranties required to run electric vehicle fleets, as well as low and in some cases free energy costs. Nuvve expects to generate revenue primarily from the provision of services to the grid via its GIVe software platform and sales of V2G-enabled charging stations. In the case of light duty fleet and heavy duty fleet customers, Nuvve also may receive a mobility fee, which is a recurring fixed payment made by fleet customers per fleet vehicle. In addition, Nuvve may generate non-recurring engineering services revenue derived from the integration of its technology with automotive OEMs and charge point operators. In the case of recurring grid services revenue generated via automotive OEM and charge point operator customer integrations, Nuvve may share the recurring grid services revenue with the customer.



Business Combination

On March 19, 2021, Nuvve consummated the Business Combination contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The Business Combination was effected in two steps, as follows: (i) Newborn reincorporated to the State of Delaware by merging with and into the Company, with the Company surviving the merger as the new public company (the Reincorporation Merger), and (ii) immediately after the Reincorporation Merger, Merger Sub merged with and into Nuvve, with Nuvve surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the Acquisition Merger). Also on March 19, 2021, the Company consummated the PIPE, generating net proceeds of \$14,250,000.

The most significant change in Nuvve's future reported financial position and results as a result of the completion of the Business Combination and the PIPE was an estimated net increase in cash of approximately \$62,018,410. Total transaction costs of \$3,702,421 were treated as a reduction of the cash proceeds with capital raising costs being deducted from Nuvve's additional paid-in capital. In addition, the net cash proceeds were reduced by the Company's payment of \$6,000,000 to EDF Renewables in connection with the repurchase from them of 600,000 shares of the Company's common stock pursuant to the Purchase and Option Agreement, payment of \$487,500 to NeoGenesis Holding Co. Ltd., the sponsor of Newborn, in repayment of loans made by the sponsor to Newborn, and deposit of \$495,000 into escrow for the potential repayment Nuvve's PPP loan. Upon forgiveness of the PPP loan in June 2021, the \$495,000 was released to the Company.

Upon consummation of the Business Combination, Nuvve-designated directors were appointed to five of the seven seats of the combined company's board of directors; Nuvve's Chief Executive Officer was appointed as Chairman of the combined company's board of directors; Nuvve's senior management became the senior management of the combined company; and the current stockholders of Nuvve became the owners of approximately 48.3% of the outstanding shares of common stock of the combined company. Accordingly, the Business Combination is being accounted for as a Reverse Recapitalization, whereby Nuvve is the acquirer for accounting and financial reporting purposes and Newborn is the legal acquirer. A Reverse Recapitalization does not result in a new basis of accounting, and the financial statements of the combined entity represent the continuation of the consolidated financial statements of legacy Nuvve in many respects. The shares of Newborn remaining after redemptions, and the unrestricted net cash and cash equivalents on the date the Business Combination is consummated, are being accounted for as a capital infusion to Nuvve.

As a consequence of the Business Combination, Nuvve became an SEC-registered, Nasdaq-listed company, which will require Nuvve to hire additional personnel and implement procedures and processes to address public company regulatory requirements and customary practices. Nuvve expects to incur additional annual expenses as a public company for, among other things, directors' and officers' liability insurance, director fees and additional internal and external accounting, legal and administrative expenses.

Additionally, Nuvve expects its capital and operating expenditures will increase significantly in connection with ongoing activities as Nuvve invests additional working capital for heavy-duty DC-V2G charging stations and level 2 AC-V2G charging stations, additional investments in equipment to meet increased project needs, and additional operating expenses to hire project managers, technicians, sales, partnership and customer service personnel, data scientists, trading teams, software engineers and administrative staff.

Nuvve's historical operations and statements of assets and liabilities may not be comparable to the operations and statements of assets and liabilities of the combined company as a result of the Business Combination.

On August 4, 2021, we formed a joint venture, Levo Mobility LLC with Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP, a Delaware limited partnership. Please see Note 15 for a summary description of the key items of the joint venture agreement.

COVID-19

The outbreak of disease cause by a novel coronavirus discovered in December 2019 (COVID-19), which was declared a pandemic in March 2020, and the related restrictive measures such as travel restrictions, quarantines, and shutdowns, have negatively impacted the global economy. As national and local governments in different countries ease COVID-19 restrictions, and vaccines are distributed and rolled out successfully, we continue to see improved economic trends. However, COVID-19 and actions taken to mitigate its spread have had and are expected to continue to have an adverse impact on the economies and financial markets of many countries, including the geographical area in which Nuvve operates.

As the coronavirus pandemic continues to evolve, Nuvve believes the extent of the impact to its business, operating results, cash flows, liquidity and financial condition will be primarily driven by the severity and duration of the coronavirus pandemic, the pandemic's impact on the U.S. and global economies and the timing, scope and effectiveness of federal, state and local governmental responses to the pandemic. Those primary drivers are beyond Nuvve's knowledge and control, and as a result, at this time Nuvve is unable to predict the cumulative impact, both in terms of severity and duration, that the coronavirus pandemic will have on its business, operating results, cash flows and financial condition, but it could be material if the current circumstances continue to exist for a prolonged period of time. In addition to any direct impact on Nuvve's business, it is reasonably possible that the estimates made by management in preparing Nuvve's financial statements have been, or will be, materially and adversely impacted in the near term as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, and if so, Nuvve may be subject to future impairment losses related to long-lived assets as well as changes to recorded reserves and valuations. Although Nuvve has made its best estimates based upon current information, there can be no assurance that such estimates will prove correct due to the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak or otherwise.

Key Factors Affecting Nuvve's Business

Nuvve believes its performance and future success depend on several factors that present significant opportunities for it but also pose risks and challenges, including those discussed below and in the "*Form 10 Information—Risk Factors*" section of the Form 8-K filed on March 25, 2021 with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("Form 8-K").

Growth in EV Adoption

Nuvve's revenue growth is tied to the overall acceptance of commercial fleet and passenger EVs sold, which it believes will help drive the demand for intelligent vehicle-grid-integration solutions. The market for EVs is still rapidly evolving and although demand for EVs has grown in recent years, there is no guarantee of such future demand. Factors impacting the adoption of EVs include but are not limited to: perceptions about EV features, quality, safety, performance and cost; perceptions about the limited range over which EVs may be driven on a single battery charge; volatility in the cost of oil and gasoline; availability of services for EVs; consumers' perception about the convenience and cost of charging EVs; and increases in fuel efficiency. In addition, macroeconomic factors could impact demand for EVs, particularly since they can be more expensive than traditional gasoline-powered vehicles when the automotive industry globally has been experiencing a recent decline in sales. If the market for EVs does not develop as expected or if there is any slow-down or delay in overall EV adoption rates, this would impact Nuvve's ability to increase its revenue or grow its business.

Fleet Expansion

Nuvve's future growth is highly dependent upon the fleet applications associated with its technology. Because fleet operators often make large purchases of EVs, this cyclicality and volatility may be more pronounced, and any significant decline from these customers reduces Nuvve's potential for future growth.

Government Mandates, Incentives and Programs

The U.S. federal government, foreign governments and some state and local governments provide incentives to end users and purchasers of EVs and EV charging stations in the form of rebates, tax credits, and other financial incentives, such as payments for regulatory credits. The EV market relies on these governmental rebates, tax credits, and other financial incentives to significantly lower the effective price of EVs and EV charging stations to customers. However, these incentives may expire on a particular date, end when the allocated funding is exhausted, or be reduced or terminated as a matter of regulatory or legislative policy.



In the future, Nuvve will derive other revenue from fees received for transferring regulatory credits earned for participating in low carbon fuel programs in approved states. Generally, only the owner of EV charging stations can either claim or assign such regulatory credits. If a material percentage of Nuvve's customers were to claim these regulatory credits or choose to not assign the regulatory credits to Nuvve, Nuvve's revenue from this source could decline significantly, which could have an adverse effect on its revenues and overall gross margin. While Nuvve has derived an immaterial percentage of its other revenue from these regulatory credits, Nuvve expects revenue from this source as a percentage of revenue may increase over time. Further, the availability of such credits depends on continued governmental support for these programs. If these programs are modified, reduced or eliminated, Nuvve's ability to generate this revenue in the future could be adversely impacted.

Competition

Nuvve offers proprietary V2G technology and services and intends to expand its market share over time in its product categories, leveraging the network effect of its V2G technology, services and GIVe software platform. Existing competitors may expand their product offerings and sales strategies, and new competitors may enter the market. Furthermore, Nuvve's competition includes other types of electric vehicle charging technologies, such as uni-directional "smart-charging" and lower cost (unmanaged) charging solutions. See "*Form 10 Information—Business of Nuvve*" in Nuvve's Form 8-K. If Nuvve's market share does not grow due to increased competition, its revenue and ability to generate profits in the future may be impacted.

Geographic Expansion

Nuvve operates in North America, selected countries in Europe (directly and through its business venture with EDF), and Japan. Revenue from North America and Europe is expected to contribute significantly to Nuvve's total revenue in the near-to-intermediate term, while revenue from Japan is expected to increase over the longer run due to the early stage nature of its market for V2G technology and services. Nuvve plans to use a portion of the proceeds from the Business Combination to increase its sales and marketing activities, as well as to potentially pursue strategic acquisitions in North America and Europe. Nuvve is also positioned to grow its North American and European business through future partnerships with charge point operators, OEMs and leasing companies. However, Nuvve may experience competition with other providers of EV charging station networks for installations. Many of these competitors have limited funding, which could lead to poor customer experiences and have a negative impact on overall EV adoption. Nuvve's growth in North America and Europe requires differentiating itself as compared to the several existing competitors. If Nuvve is unable to penetrate the market in North America and Europe, its future revenue growth and profits will be impacted.

Backlog

Our total backlog represents the estimated transaction prices on unsatisfied and partially satisfied performance obligations to our customers for products and services. Backlog is converted into revenue in future periods as we satisfied the performance obligations to our customers for products and services, primarily based on the cost incurred or at delivery and acceptance of products, depending on the applicable accounting method.

Our estimated backlog at June 30, 2021 was \$6.4 million.

Market Opportunity

There is a huge market opportunity for V2G, totaling approximately over \$6 trillion and Nuvve is well positioned to capture this global opportunity. This is for a variety of reasons:

- First, our intellectual property includes key patents, making it difficult for competitors to perform V2G functions without violating our IP. Our technology originated with an academic unit at the University of Delaware starting in 1996 and not only had decades of development but tens of millions of dollars in project funding invested prior to our acquisition of the IP and commercialization of the technology.
- Second, we are already qualified by multiple Transmission System Operators, which typically take anywhere from one to three years to get approval. With this qualification, it makes it easier for us to expand in other areas.
- Third, we have over a decade of experience. Our history and strong relationships with key customers optimize our market participation and value proposition.
- Fourth, we have collected a huge amount of data which is a key element for rapid and accurate development, as well as monetization.

Because of these factors, Nuvve has a significant competitive advantage which is a key differentiator for us. Further, our global experience allows us to bring the lessons we have learned into each new region which, in turn, enables us to bring the unique experience and incredible benefits of our V2G technology to customers at a faster rate.



Results of Operations

Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021 Compared with Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2020

The following table sets forth information regarding our consolidated results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Period-over-Period Change		Six Months Ended June 30,		Period-over-Period Change	
	2021	2020	Change (\$)	Change (%)	2021	2020	Change (\$)	Change (%)
Revenue								
Products and services	\$ 766,516	\$ 54,325	\$ 712,191	1,311%	\$ 1,078,419	\$ 360,046	\$ 718,373	200%
Grants	214,814	408,818	(194,004)	(47)%	701,943	1,048,427	(346,484)	(33)%
Total revenue	981,330	463,143	518,187	112%	1,780,362	1,408,473	371,889	26%
Operating expenses								
Cost of product and								
service revenue	362,658	10,808	351,850	3,255%	489,886	33,204	456,682	1,375%
Selling, general and administrative expenses	5,269,791	868,813	4,400,978	507%	9,752,531	1,717,420	8,035,111	468%
Research and								
development expense	1,689,245	665,460	1,023,785	154%	2,952,195	1,207,085	1,745,110	145%
Total operating expenses	7,321,694	1,545,081	5,776,613	374%	13,194,612	2,957,709	10,236,903	346%
Operating loss	(6,340,364)	(1,081,938)	(5,258,426)	486%	(11,414,250)	(1,549,236)	(9,865,014)	637%
Other income (expense)								
Interest income (expense)	1,984	(5,455)	7,439	(136)%	(595,565)	(7,330)	(588,235)	8,025%
Change in fair value of conversion option on convertible notes		3,107	(3,107)	100%	_	_	_	100%
Change in fair value of		5,107	(3,107)	10070				10070
private warrants liability	(351,602)		(351,602)	100%	70.228		70.228	100%
Other, net	503,676	31,184	472,492	1,515%	391,561	5,656	385,905	6,823%
Total other (expense)	303,070	51,104	472,492	1,31370	591,501	5,050	303,903	0,02370
income, net	154.058	28,836	125,222	434%	(133,776)	(1,674)	(132,102)	7,891%
Loss before taxes	- ,			434 %				645%
Income tax (benefit)	(6,186,306)	(1,053,102)	(5,133,204)	40770	(11,548,026)	(1,550,910)	(9,997,116)	04370
expense	1,000	1,000		%	1,000	1,000		%
Net loss	\$(6,187,306)	\$(1,054,102)	\$(5,133,204)	487%	\$(11,549,026)	\$(1,551,910)	\$ (9,997,116)	<u>644</u> %

Revenue

Total revenue was \$1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021, compared to \$0.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020, an increase of \$0.5 million, or 111.9%. The increase is attributed to \$0.7 million increase in products and services revenue, partially offset by a \$0.2 million decrease in grants revenue.



Total revenue was \$1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021, compared to \$1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020, an increase of \$0.4 million, or 26.4%. The increase is attributed to a \$0.7 million increase in products and services revenue, partially offset by a \$0.3 million decrease in grants revenue.

Cost of Product and Service Revenue

Cost of product and service revenues primarily consisted of the cost of charging station goods sold. Cost of product and service revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2021, increased by \$0.4 million, or 3,255.5%, primarily due to the sales of charging stations in the United States, with no similar activity in the comparable period. Product and service gross margins decreased by 27.4% to 52.7% from 80.1% compared to the same prior year period mostly due to unfavorable mix of products sold with lower gross margins.

Cost of product and service revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2021, increased by \$0.5 million, or 1,375.4%, primarily due to the sales of charging stations in the United States, with no similar activity in the comparable period. Product and service gross margins decreased by 36.2% to 54.6% from 90.8% compared to the same prior year period mostly due to unfavorable mix of products sold with lower gross margins.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist of selling, marketing, advertising, payroll, administrative, finance and professional expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were \$5.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 as compared to \$0.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020, an increase of \$4.4 million, or 506.6%. Selling, general and administrative expenses were \$9.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 as compared to \$1.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020, an increase of \$8.0 million, or 467.9%.

The increases during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 were primarily attributable to increases in compensation expenses, including sharebased compensation, and professional fees which were associated with the completion of the Business Combination and the Company becoming a recapitalized publicly traded company in March 2021.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by \$1.0 million, or 153.8%, from \$0.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020 to \$1.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021. Research and development expenses increased by \$1.7 million, or 144.6%, from \$1.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$3.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021. The increases during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 were primarily attributable to increases in compensation expenses and subcontractor expenses used to advance the Company's platform functionality and integration with more vehicles.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) consists primarily of interest expense, change in fair value of private warrants liability, change in fair value of conversion option on convertible notes, and other income (expense). Other income (expense) increased by \$0.1 million, from \$0.03 million of other expense for the three months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.2 million in other expense for the three months ended June 30, 2021. Other income (expense) increased by \$0.1 million, from \$0.002 million of other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.2 million and the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million in other expense for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$0.1 million

The increases during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 were primarily attributable to the interest expense on the convertible debenture, the change in fair value of the private warrants liability, and the beneficial conversion feature associated with the convertible debenture, partially offset by the gains on the forgiveness write-off of the PPP loan. The debenture was converted upon the closing of the Business Combination and will not be recurring.

Income Taxes

In the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, we recorded income tax expenses of \$1,000 in each period. The income tax expenses during the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were minimal primarily due to operating losses that receive no tax benefits as a result of a valuation allowance recorded for such losses.

Net loss

Net loss increased by \$5.1 million, or 487.0%, from \$1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020 to \$6.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021. The increase in net loss was primarily due to increase in expenses of \$5.3 million and increase in other expense of \$0.1 million for the aforementioned reasons.

Net loss increased by \$10.0 million, or 644.2%, from \$1.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020 to \$11.5 for the six months ended June 30, 2021. The increase in net loss primarily due to increase in expenses of \$9.9 million and increase in other expense of \$0.1 million for the aforementioned reasons.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

We are an early-stage business enterprise. Prior to the Business Combination, we funded our business operations primarily with the issuance of equity and convertible notes, and borrowings along with cash from operations. Nuvve has incurred net losses and negative cash flows from operations since its inception. During the six months ended June 30, 2021, Nuvve raised net proceeds of \$61.8 million from the Business Combination, the PIPE offering, and related transactions. As reflected in Nuvve's unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2021, Nuvve had a cash balance, working capital, and stockholders' equity of \$48.1 million, \$49.9 million and \$94.8 million, respectively. Nuvve has been able to raise funds primarily through the Business Combination and PIPE Offering to support its business operations, although there can be no assurance it will be successful in raising necessary funds in the future, on acceptable terms or at all. We believe that our cash balance as of June 30, 2021 and our cash flows from operations, will be sufficient to fund our working capital and capital expenditure requirements for the next 12 months.

PPP and SBA Loans

In April 2020, Nuvve applied for, and in May 2020 received, a loan in the amount of \$0.5 million as a part of the CARES Act. The loan is also known as a PPP loan. The loan had a term of two years at an interest rate of 1% with principal and interest deferred for six months. The loan also was eligible for forgiveness if certain criteria were met. Upon the closing of the Business Combination, \$495,000 of the proceeds received from Newborn's trust account were set aside in trust for the possible repayment of the PPP loan. We applied for forgiveness of the PPP loan in June 2021, and the PPP loan was fully forgiven and the \$495,000 in trust was released to us.

Nuvve has two contracts, E-FLEX and Project Local Energy Oxfordshire, with a United Kingdom government agency, Innovate UK ("IUK"). Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, IUK offered, and in March 2020, Nuvve accepted a grant of disaster relief funds of 0.1 million British pounds (equivalent to approximately US\$0.1 million) to only be used in performance under these contracts.

Cash Flows

	Six Months June	
	2021	2020
Net cash (used in) provided by:		
Operating activities	\$(13,413,426)	\$ (734,140)
Investing activities	7,969	(22,504)
Financing activities	59,474,365	669,997
Effect of exchange rate on cash and restricted cash	98,193	(11,454)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and restricted cash	\$ 46,167,101	\$ (98,101)



Net cash used in operating activities during the six months ended June 30, 2021 was \$13.4 million as compared to net cash used of \$0.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2020. The \$12.7 million increase in net cash used in operating activities was primarily attributable to higher use of cash for working capital during the six months ended June 30, 2021 as compared to the same prior period. Working capital during the six months ended June 30, 2021 was impacted by, among other items, lower net revenues and the related net loss of \$11.5 million, increased compensation and professional expenses associated with the Company becoming a recapitalized publicly traded company, and cash purchases to fund higher inventory levels. These were partially offset by improved timing and management of vendor terms compared to the cash settlement of such items.

During the six months ended June 30, 2021, cash provided by investing activities was \$0.01 million. Net cash used in investing activities was \$0.02 million during the three months ended March 31, 2020, which was used to purchase fixed assets.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2021 was \$59.5 million, of which \$58.2 million was provided in connection with the reverse recapitalization, \$14.3 million was provided in connection with the PIPE offering, partially offset by issuance costs of \$4.0 million, the repayment of Newborn sponsor loans of \$0.5 million, the \$6.0 million repurchase of common stock, the payment of investor stock liability of \$2.0 million and the payment of legal and accounting costs of \$0.5 million associated with the recapitalization of the Company. Cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2020 was \$0.7 million, all of which was proceeds from PPP and EDF loans.

Business Combination

Immediately prior to the closing of the Business Combination on the Closing Date, March 19, 2021, Newborn consummated the sale of \$14,250,000 of Newborn's ordinary shares and warrants in the PIPE pursuant to the Subscription Agreements. In addition, immediately prior to the closing of the Business Combination, the principal and interest earned on the Bridge Loan (see Note 7 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information) was automatically converted into 2,562,005 shares of common stock of Nuvve Corp. based on a stated conversion price of \$1.56 per share of Nuvve Corp. common stock (equivalent to \$7.50 per share of the Company's common stock). At the effective time of the Business Combination, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, each share of Nuvve Corp. common stock (including the shares of Nuvve Corp. common stock issued upon conversion of Nuvve Corp.'s Series A preferred stock and upon conversion of the Bridge Loan immediately prior to the closing) was canceled and converted into the right to receive the number of shares of the Company's common stock equal to the Closing Exchange Ratio. As part of the Business Combination, Newborn was merged with and into the Company, the separate corporate existence of Newborn ceased and the Company continued as the surviving corporation. Upon the closing of the merger with the Company, each of Newborn's outstanding units was automatically separated into its constituent securities and Newborn's outstanding securities (including the Newborn ordinary shares and Newborn's rights was converted automatically into one-tenth of one share of the Company's common stock in accordance with its terms. In connection with the closing, the Company changed its name to Nuvve Holding Corp.

On the closing date of the Business Combination, the proceeds from Newborn's Trust Account, which were generated from Newborn's initial public offering and a concurrent private placement, were released to the combined company. In Newborn's initial public offering, Newborn issued 5,750,000 units at \$10.00 per unit. Concurrently with the initial public offering, Newborn sold to its sponsor 272,500 units at \$10.00 per unit in a private placement. Newborn received net proceeds of approximately \$57,989,380 from the public and private units. Upon closing of the initial public offering and the private placement, \$57,500,000 was placed in a trust account with a trust company acting as trustee. On the closing Date of the Business Combination, the balance in the Trust Account, net of \$18,630 of redemptions by Newborn shareholders, was \$58,453,331.

Pursuant to a Purchase and Option Agreement between the Company and a former stockholder of Nuvve Corp., 600,000 shares of the Company's common stock were repurchased immediately after the closing for \$6,000,000 out of the proceeds available from the Trust Account.

After the closing of the above transactions, payment of transaction costs of \$3,702,421, repayment of loans made by Newborn's sponsor to Newborn of \$487,500, and deposit into escrow of \$495,000 to cover the balance of the PPP Loan (see Note 7 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information), the Company received total net proceeds in cash of \$62,018,410 result of the above transactions.



Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Nuvve is not a party to any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's discussion and analysis of Nuvve's financial condition and results of operations is based on its consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires Nuvve to make estimates and assumptions for the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures. Nuvve's estimates are based on its historical experience and on various other factors that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions and any such differences may be material.

While Nuvve's significant accounting policies are described in more detail in Note 2 to its consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report, it believes the following accounting policies and estimates to be most critical to the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Nuvve recognizes revenue using the five-step model under ASC 606 in determining revenue recognition that requires Nuvve to exercise judgment when considering the terms of contracts, which includes: (a) identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer; (b) identification of the performance obligations in the contract; (c) determination of the transaction price; (d) allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (e) recognition of revenue when, or as, it satisfies a performance obligation.

Nuvve may enter into contracts with customers that include promises to transfer multiple products and services, such as charging systems, software subscriptions, extended maintenance, and professional services. For arrangements with multiple products and services, Nuvve evaluates whether the individual products and services qualify as distinct performance obligations. In Nuvve's assessment of whether products and services are a distinct performance obligation, it determines whether the customer can benefit from the product or service on its own or with other readily available resources and whether the service is separately identifiable from other products or services in the contract. This evaluation requires Nuvve to assess the nature of each of its networked charging systems, subscriptions, and other offerings and how they are provided in the contract, including whether they are significantly integrated which may require judgment based on the facts and circumstances of the contract.

The transaction price for each contract is determined based on the amount Nuvve expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for transferring the promised products or services to the customer. Collectability of revenue is reasonably assured based on historical evidence of collectability of fees Nuvve charges its customers. The transaction price in the contract is allocated to each distinct performance obligation in an amount that represents the relative amount of consideration expected to be received in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. Revenue is recognized when performance obligations are satisfied. Revenue is recorded based on the transaction price excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales taxes, which are collected on behalf of and remitted to governmental authorities, or driver fees, collected on behalf of customers who offer public charging for a fee.

When agreements involve multiple distinct performance obligations, Nuvve accounts for individual performance obligations separately if they are distinct. Nuvve applies significant judgment in identifying and accounting for each performance obligation, as a result of evaluating terms and conditions in contracts. The transaction price is allocated to the separate performance obligations on a relative standalone selling price ("SSP") basis. Nuvve determines SSP based on observable standalone selling price when it is available, as well as other factors, including the price charged to its customers, its discounting practices and its overall pricing objectives, while maximizing observable inputs. In situations where pricing is highly variable, or a product is never sold on a stand-alone basis, Nuvve estimates the SSP using the residual approach.

Nuvve has entered into various agreements for research and development services. The terms of these arrangements typically include terms whereby Nuvve receives milestone payments in accordance with the scope of services outlined in the respective agreement or is reimbursed for allowable costs. At the inception of each arrangement that includes milestone payments, Nuvve evaluates whether a significant reversal of cumulative revenue associated with achieving the milestones is probable and estimates the amount to be included in the transaction price using the most likely amount method. If it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue would not occur, the associated milestone value is included in the transaction price. Nuvve applies considerable judgment in evaluating factors such as the scientific, regulatory, commercial, and other risks that must be overcome to achieve the particular milestone in making this assessment. At the end of each subsequent reporting period, Nuvve reevaluates the probability of achievement of all milestones subject to constraint and, if necessary, adjusts its estimate of the overall transaction price. Any such adjustments are recorded on a cumulative catch-up basis, which would affect revenues and earnings in the period of adjustment.



Revenue for other service contracts is recognized over time using an input method where progress on the performance obligation is measured based on the proportion of actual costs incurred to date relative to the total costs expected to be required to satisfy the performance obligation.

During 2017, Nuvve was awarded grant funding from the California Energy Commission, which contract continued through 2020. Nuvve has concluded as of January 1, 2019 that this government grant is not within the scope of ASC 606, as government entity does not meet the definition of a "customer" as defined by ASC 606, as there is not considered to be a transfer of control of goods or services to the government entity funding the grant. Revenues from this grant are based upon internal costs incurred that are specifically covered by the grant. Revenue is recognized as Nuvve incurs expenses that are related to the grant. Nuvve believes this policy is consistent with the overarching premise in ASC 606, to ensure that it recognizes revenues to reflect the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, even though there is no "exchange" as defined in the ASC. Nuvve believes the recognition of revenue as costs are incurred and amounts become earned/realizable is analogous to the concept of transfer of control of a service over time under ASC 606.

For sales of finished products (charging stations) to customers which are standalone performance obligations, Nuvve satisfies its performance obligation and records revenues when transfer of control has passed to the customer, which Nuvve has determined as the date at which the product ships. The transaction price is determined based upon the invoiced sales price. Payment terms generally require remittance from customer within 30 days of the sale date. When charging stations are sold as part of a solution, Nuvve satisfies its performance obligation and records revenues when the charging stations are installed and commissioned.

Areas of Judgment and Estimates

Determining whether multiple promises in a contract constitute distinct performance obligations that should be accounted for separately or as a single performance obligation requires significant judgment. In reaching its conclusion, Nuvve assesses the nature of each individual service or product offering and how the services and products are provided in the context of the contract, including whether the services are significantly integrated which may require judgment based on the facts and circumstances of the contract. Determining the relative SSP for contracts that contain multiple performance obligations requires significant judgment. Nuvve determines SSP using observable pricing when available, which takes into consideration market conditions and customer specific factors. When observable pricing is not available, Nuvve first allocates to the performance obligations with established SSPs and then applies the residual approach to allocate the remaining transaction price.

Stock-based compensation

Nuvve grants stock options and restricted stock awards to employees and non-employees. Determining the grant date fair value of options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires management to make certain assumptions and judgments. These estimates involve inherent uncertainties, and, if different assumptions had been used, stock-based compensation expense could have been materially different from the amounts recorded. Stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. Nuvve recognizes forfeitures as they occur.

The determination of the grant date fair value of stock option awards issued is affected by a number of variables, including the fair value of Nuvve's underlying common stock, its expected common stock price volatility over the term of the option award, the expected term of the award, risk-free interest rates, and the expected dividend yield of Nuvve Common Stock.

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used in estimating the fair value of stock options granted during each of the periods presented:

	Six Months June 3	
	2021	2020
Expected life of options (in years)	6.0	
Dividend yield	0%	
Risk-free interest rate	1.02%	
Expected volatility	60.4%	—

There were no stock options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2020.

- **Expected Life**. The expected term represents the expected life of options is the average of the contractual term of the options and the vesting period.
- **Dividend Yield**. The expected dividend yield is zero as Nuvve has never declared or paid cash dividends and has no current plans to do so over the expected life of the options.
- **Risk Free Interest Rate**. The risk-free interest rate is based on the yields on U.S. Treasury debt securities with maturities approximating the estimated life of the options.
- **Expected Volatility**. As Nuvve has only been a public company for a short period of time, the volatility rate was estimated by management based on the average volatility of certain public company peers within Nuvve's industry corresponding to the expected term of the awards.

Common Stock Valuation

Historically for financial statement periods prior to the Business Combination, the fair value of Nuvve Common Stock has been determined by the Nuvve's Board of Directors with the assistance of management. In the absence of a public trading market for Nuvve Common Stock, on each grant date, Nuvve developed an estimate of the fair value of Nuvve Common Stock based on the information known on the date of grant, upon a review of any recent events and their potential impact on the estimated fair value per share of Nuvve Common Stock, and in part on input from third-party valuations. For periods subsequent to the Business Combination, the Company determines the fair value of its common stock based on the price of its publicly traded stock.

Nuvve's valuations of Nuvve Common Stock are determined in accordance with ASC 820, *Fair Value Measurement* and the guidelines outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practice Aid, *Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation*.

The assumptions used to determine the estimated fair value of Nuvve Common Stock are based on numerous objective and subjective factors, combined with management's judgment, including:

- third-party valuations of its common stock;
- external market conditions affecting the EV industry and trends within the industry;
- the rights, preferences, and privileges of Nuvve convertible Series A preferred stock relative to those of Nuvve Common Stock;
- the prices at which Nuvve sold shares of its common stock;
- its financial condition and operating results, including its levels of available capital resources;
- the progress of its research and development efforts, its stage of development, and business strategy;
- the likelihood of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering or a sale of Nuvve given prevailing market conditions;
- the history and nature of Nuvve's business, industry trends, and competitive environment;
- the lack of marketability of Nuvve Common Stock;
- equity market conditions affecting comparable public companies; and
- general U.S. and global market conditions.



In determining the fair value of Nuvve Common Stock, Nuvve established the enterprise value of its business using the market approach and the income approach. Nuvve also estimated the enterprise value by reference to the closest round of equity financing preceding the date of the valuation if such financing took place around the valuation date. Under the income approach, forecasted cash flows are discounted to the present value at a risk-adjusted discount rate. The valuation analyses determine discrete free cash flows over multiple years based on forecasted financial information provided by Nuvve's management and a terminal value for the residual period beyond the discrete forecast, which are discounted at its estimated weighted-average cost of capital to estimate its enterprise value. Under the market approach, a group of guideline publicly-traded companies with similar financial and operating characteristics to Nuvve are selected, and valuation multiples based on the guideline public companies' financial information and market data are calculated. Based on the observed valuation multiples, an appropriate multiple was selected to apply to Nuvve's historical and forecasted revenue results.

In allocating the equity value of Nuvve's business among the various classes of equity securities, it used the option pricing model ("OPM") method, which models each class of equity securities as a call option with a unique claim on its assets. The OPM treats Nuvve Common Stock and convertible Series A preferred stock as call options on an equity value with exercise prices based on the liquidation preference of its redeemable convertible preferred stock. The common stock is modeled as a call option with a claim on the equity value at an exercise price equal to the remaining value immediately after its redeemable convertible preferred stock is liquidated. The exclusive reliance on the OPM is appropriate when the range of possible future outcomes was difficult to predict and resulted in a highly speculative forecast.

Since August 2020, Nuvve used a hybrid method utilizing a combination of the OPM and the probability weighted expected return method ("PWERM"). The PWERM is a scenario-based methodology that estimates the fair value of common shares based upon an analysis of future values for Nuvve, assuming various outcomes.

The common share value is based on the probability-weighted present value of expected future investment returns considering two possible scenarios available as well as the rights of each class of shares. These two scenarios are: (i) a transaction with a SPAC and (ii) remaining a private company. The value of the common shares is determined based on an analysis of Nuvve's operations and projections as of the valuation date, as well as its expected SPAC value for which we have discounted back to the valuation date at an appropriate risk-adjusted discount rate. We then probability weighted each outcome to arrive at an indication of value for the common shares. Nuvve used the OPM and the PWERM to allocate the equity value of its business among the various classes of stock.

After the allocation to the various classes of equity securities, a discount for lack of marketability ("DLOM") was applied to arrive at a fair value of common stock. A DLOM was meant to account for the lack of marketability of a stock that was not publicly traded. In making the final determination of common stock value, consideration was also given to recent sales of common stock.

Application of these approaches and methodologies involves the use of estimates, judgments, and assumptions that are highly complex and subjective, such as those regarding Nuvve's expected future revenue, expenses, and future cash flows, discount rates, market multiples, the selection of comparable public companies, and the probability of and timing associated with possible future events. Changes in any or all of these estimates and assumptions or the relationships between those assumptions impact Nuvve's valuations as of each valuation date and may have a material impact on the valuation of Nuvve Common Stock. Following the Business Combination, it will not be necessary to estimate the fair value of the Company's Common Stock as the shares will be traded in a public market.

Income Taxes

Nuvve utilizes the asset and liability method in accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the estimated future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets where it is the result of changes in the deferred tax asset and liability. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets where it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Nuvve makes estimates, assumptions, and judgments to determine its provision for its income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. Nuvve assesses the likelihood that its deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and to the extent it believes that recovery is not likely, it establishes a valuation allowance.

Nuvve recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized from such positions are then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits which, as of the date of this report, have not been material, are recognized within provision for income taxes.



Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 of Nuvve's consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for more information regarding recently issued accounting pronouncements.

Emerging Growth Company Accounting Election

Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can choose not to take advantage of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies, and any such election to not take advantage of the extended transition period is irrevocable. The Company is an "emerging growth company" as defined in Section 2(A) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and has elected to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period.

The Company expects to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards that have different effective dates for public business entities and non-public business entities until the earlier of the date the Company (a) is no longer an emerging growth company or (b) affirmatively and irrevocably opts out of the extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. This may make it difficult or impossible to compare the Company's financial results with the financial results of another public company that is either not an emerging growth company or is an emerging growth company that has chosen not to take advantage of the extended transition period exemptions because of the potential differences in accounting standards used. See Note 2 of the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements and unaudited consolidated financial statements of Nuvve included elsewhere in this report for the recent accounting pronouncements adopted and the recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted for the six months ended June 30, 2021.

In addition, the Company intends to rely on the other exemptions and reduced reporting requirements provided by the JOBS Act. Subject to certain conditions set forth in the JOBS Act, if, as an emerging growth company, the Company intends to rely on such exemptions, the Company is not required to, among other things: (a) provide an auditor's attestation report on the Company's system of internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; (b) provide all of the compensation disclosure that may be required of non-emerging growth public companies under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act; (c) comply with any requirement that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor's report providing additional information about the audit and the consolidated financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis); or (d) disclose certain executive compensation-related items such as the correlation between executive compensation and performance and comparisons of the Chief Executive Officer's compensation to median employee compensation.

The Company will remain an emerging growth company under the JOBS Act until the earliest of (a) the last day of the Company's first fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of Newborn's IPO, (b) the last date of the Company's fiscal year in which the Company has total annual gross revenue of at least \$1.07 billion, (c) the date on which the Company is deemed to be a "large accelerated filer" under the rules of the SEC with at least \$700.0 million of outstanding securities held by non-affiliates or (d) the date on which the Company has issued more than \$1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities during the previous three years.



Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Not applicable.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, our principal executive officer and principal accounting and financial officer, respectively, have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of June 30, 2021.

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of June 30, 2021 due to the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting described below. In light of this fact, our management has performed additional analyses, reconciliations, and other post-closing procedures and has concluded that, notwithstanding the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial statements for the periods covered by and included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fairly present, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Except for the changes in connection with the ongoing remediation of the previously identified material weaknesses discussed below, there has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2021, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Material Weakness

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, we identified control deficiencies in the design and operation of our internal control over financial reporting that constituted material weaknesses, which we have started remediating but have not completed the remediation as of June 30, 2021. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.



The material weaknesses identified in our internal control over financial reporting related to (i) segregation of duties related to roles and responsibilities in the accounting department; and (ii) financial close and reporting processes lacking formal documentation of financial closing policies and procedures, that do not result in timely production of accurate financial information, and that do not result in a consistent documentation of the considerations and conclusions related to unusual or complex accounting matters. As of June 30, 2021, we have taken a number of actions to remediate these material weaknesses, including:

- utilizing outside accounting and financial reporting consultants to supplement the Company's resources in the area of the financial close and financial reporting;
- engaging SEC compliance and technical accounting consultants to assist in evaluating transactions for conformity with the U.S. GAAP;
- utilizing outside consultants to perform a comprehensive review of current procedures to identify and assist in implementing controls in conformity with COSO "Internal Control over Financial Reporting Guidance for Smaller Public Companies" that was published in 2006 and updated in 2013, including the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication and monitoring; and
- hiring additional finance and accounting personnel, including hiring an SEC compliance and technical accountant, to augment accounting staff and to provide further segregation of duties and more resources for complex accounting matters and financial reporting.

We are still in the process of implementing these controls. We intend to continue to take steps to remediate the material weaknesses through formalizing documentation of policies and procedures and further evolving our accounting processes.

While we believe that these efforts will improve our internal control over financial reporting, the design and implementation of our remediation is ongoing and will require validation and testing of the design and operating effectiveness of our internal controls over a sustained period of financial reporting cycles. The actions that we are taking are subject to ongoing senior management review, as well as audit committee oversight. We will not be able to conclude whether the steps we are taking will fully remediate the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting until we have completed our remediation efforts and subsequent evaluation of their effectiveness.

Inherent Limitation on the Effectiveness Over Financial Reporting

The effectiveness of any system of internal control over financial reporting, including ours, is subject to inherent limitations, including the exercise of judgment in designing, implementing, operating, and evaluating the controls and procedures, and the inability to eliminate misconduct completely. Accordingly, any system of internal control over financial reporting, including ours, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurances. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. We intend to continue to monitor and upgrade our internal controls as necessary or appropriate for our business, but there can be no assurance that such improvements will be sufficient to provide us with effective internal control over financial reporting.



PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings. From time to time, we may be involved in legal proceedings or subject to claims incident to the ordinary course of business. The outcome of litigation is inherently uncertain, and there can be no assurances that favorable outcomes will be obtained. In addition, regardless of the outcome, such proceedings or claims can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of resources and other factors.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The business, financial condition and operating results of the Company can be affected by a number of factors, whether currently known or unknown, including but not limited to those described in the proxy statement/prospectus filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "<u>SEC</u>") pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) on February 17, 2021 (the "<u>Proxy Statement/Prospectus</u>"), in the section entitled "*Risk Factors*" beginning on page 30, which is incorporated herein by reference. Any of these factors, in whole or in part, could materially and adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition, operating results and stock price. Except as described below, there have been no material changes to our risk factors since the Proxy Statement/Prospectus.

Certain of our warrants are accounted for as liabilities and the changes in value of our warrants could have a material effect on our financial results.

On April 12, 2021, the Acting Director of the Division of Corporation Finance and Acting Chief Accountant of the SEC together issued a statement regarding the accounting and reporting considerations for warrants issued by special purpose acquisition companies entitled "Staff Statement on Accounting and Reporting Considerations for Warrants Issued by Special Purpose Acquisition Companies ("SPACs")" (the "SEC Statement"). Specifically, the SEC Statement focused on certain settlement terms, which terms are similar to those contained in the warrant agreement governing certain of our warrants. Our outstanding warrants were initially issued by Newborn, our predecessor, and we were assumed by us in the Business Combination. As a result of the SEC Statement, we evaluated the accounting treatment of the public warrants and private placement warrants issued prior to Newborn's initial public offering and determined to classify the private placement warrants as a derivative liability, measured at fair value, with changes in fair value each period reported in earnings.

As a result, included on our condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2021, contained elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, is a derivative liability related to the private placement warrants due to certain features embedded in the private placement warrants. Accounting Standards Codification 815, *Derivatives and Hedging* ("ASC 815"), provides for the remeasurement of the fair value of such derivatives at each balance sheet date, with a resulting non-cash gain or loss related to the change in the fair value being recognized in earnings in the statement of operations. As a result of the recurring fair value measurement, our consolidated financial position and results of operations may fluctuate quarterly, based on factors, which are outside of our control. Due to the recurring fair value measurement, we expect that we will recognize non-cash gains or losses on our warrants each reporting period and that the amount of such gains or losses could be material.

Conducting a portion of our operations through joint ventures exposes us to risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside of our control.

We currently operate parts of our business through joint ventures with other companies, such as Dreev and the Levo Joint Venture, and we may enter into additional joint ventures and strategic alliances in the future. Joint ventures may involve risks not otherwise present for our operations, including:

- our joint ventures may fail to generate the expected financial results, and the return may be insufficient to justify our investment of effort and/or funds;
- we may not control the joint ventures and/or our joint venture partners may hold veto rights over certain actions;
- we may experience impasses or disputes with our joint venture partners on certain decisions, which could require us to expend additional resources to resolve such impasses or disputes, including litigation or arbitration;
- we may not have control over the timing or amount of distributions from the joint venture;
- our joint venture partners may have business or economic interests that are inconsistent with ours and may take actions contrary to our interests;
- our joint venture partners may fail to fund capital contributions or fail to fulfil their obligations as a joint venture partner;
- the arrangements governing our joint ventures may contain restrictions on the conduct of our business and may contain certain conditions or milestone events that may never be satisfied or achieved;
- we may suffer losses as a result of actions taken by our joint venture partners with respect to our joint ventures;
- it may be difficult for us to exit a joint venture if an impasse arises or if we desire to sell our interest for any reason; and
- our joint venture partners may exercise termination rights under the relevant agreements.

We believe an important element in the success of any joint venture is a solid relationship between the members of that joint venture. If there is a change in ownership, a change of control, a change in management or management philosophy, a change in business strategy or another event with respect to a member of a joint venture that adversely impacts the relationship between the joint venture members, it could adversely impact that joint venture.

If our partners are unable or unwilling to invest in the joint venture in the manner that is anticipated or otherwise fail to meet their contractual obligations, the joint ventures may be unable to adequately perform and conduct their respective operations, or may require us to provide, or make other arrangements for, additional financing for the joint ventures. Such financing may not be available on favorable terms, or at all.

The other partners in our joint ventures may have economic or business interests or goals that are inconsistent with our interests or goals. For example, even where we control a joint venture, the other members in our joint venture may exercise veto rights to block actions that we believe to be in our best interests and may take action contrary to our objectives with respect to the joint venture. Partners in our joint venture partners who provide financing may prioritize the return of their investment over maximizing the value of the enterprise.

In cases where we choose to pursue a business through a joint venture, we cannot assure you that financing for the business would not be available on more favorable terms through other sources. Furthermore, our competitors may be able to obtain less expensive financing for similar business opportunities, which may provide them with a competitive advantage.

In addition to having an adverse effect on results of operations and financial condition, if any of these risks come to pass, it may have a material negative impact on our brand and how it is perceived by customers.on, if any of these risks come to pass, it may have a material negative impact on our brand and how it is perceived by customers.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

During the six months ended June 30, 2021, the Company granted 355,046 shares of restricted stock to its employees under the 2020 Equity Incentive Plan. See Note 9, *Stock Option Plan*, of the Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for details. The shares of restricted stock were granted pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by section 4(a)(2) of Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for transactions not involving a public offering.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

During the six months ended June 30, 2021, pursuant to a purchase and option agreement, dated as of November 11, 2020 (the "Purchase and Option Agreement"), between us and EDF Renewables, Inc. ("EDF Renewables"), a former stockholder of Nuvve Corporation, our wholly owned subsidiary, and the owner of more than 5% of our common stock, we repurchased 600,000 shares of our common stock from EDF Renewables at a price of \$10.00 per share on March 19, 2021. In addition, on March 19, 2021, EDF Renewables exercised its option to sell an additional \$2,000,000 of shares of our common stock back to us at a price per share of approximately \$14.87 (the average closing price over the five trading days preceding the date of exercise), or 134,449 shares of our common stock. The sale of the shares to us pursuant to the option closed on April 26, 2021.

	Total Number of Shares Purchased	Average Price Pai per Shar	d Plans or	Approximate Dollar Value of Shares That May Yet be Purchased under the Plans or Programs
Mar. 1 – Mar. 31	600,000	\$ 10.	00 600,000	
April 1 - June 30	134,500	\$ 14.	134,500	—
Total	734,500			

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

None.

2.1 Amended and Restated Qrificate of Incorporation 8-Kt 1.1 2 3.2 Amended and Restated Qrificate of Incorporation 8-K 3.2 3 4.1 Warant Agreement, dated February 13, 2020, by and between Continental Stock 8-K 3.2 3 4.1 Warant Agreement, dated February 13, 2020, by and between Continental Stock 8-K 4.2 3 4.2 Amended and Restated Pythaws 8-K 4.4 3 4.3 Unit Purchase Option, dated February 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC 8-K 4.4 3 10.1 Indemnification Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.2 Earn-out Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.2 3 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. B) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.6 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.1 Employment Agreement with Gregory Poilasne 8-K 10.1 3 10.1 Employment Agreement with Gregory Poilasne 8-K 10.1 3 10				Incorporation by Reference			
3.1 Amended and Restancel Certificate of Incorporation 8-K 3.1 3.1 3.2 Amended and Restancel Pelvasy 13, 2020, by and between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the Registrant 8-K 4.2 4.1 Warrant Agreement, dated February 13, 2020, by and between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the Registrant 8-K 4.4 4.2 Amendement No. 1 to Warrant Agreement 8-K 4.4 4.3 Unit Purchase Option, dated February 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC 8-K 4.4 4.4 Amendement No. 1 to Unit Purchase Option 8-K 4.6 3 10.1 Indemnification Escow Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement 8-K 10.2 3 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. B) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.7 3 10.6 Form of DIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.7 Form of DIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.8 Purchases and Option Agreement with Ted Smith	Exhibit No.	Description			Filing Date		
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws B-K 3.2 3.2 4.1 Warrant Agreement, dated Pehrany 13, 2020, by and between Continenial Stock B-K† 4.5 2 4.2 Amendment No. 1 to Warrant Agreement B-K† 4.4 3 4.3 Unit Purchase Option, dated Pehraay 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC B-K 4.7 2 4.4 Amendment No. 1 to Unit Purchase Option B-K 4.6 3 10.1 Indemnification Escrow Agreement B-K 10.1 2 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement B-K 10.2 3 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement B-K 10.6 3 10.6 Form of IPIE Subscription Agreement B-K 10.6 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement B-K 10.6 3 10.9 Nuver Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex K 10.1 10.11 Employment Agreement with Gregory Poilasne B-K 10.10 3 10.13 Employment Agreement with Gregory Poilasne B-K 10.10 3 10.14 Employment Agreement with David	2.1	Amendment No. 1 to Merger Agreement dated February 20, 2021	8-K†	1.1	2/23/2021		
4.1 Warrant Agreement, dared February 13, 2020, by and between Continental Stock 8-K 4.4 5-K 4.4 4.2 Annendment No. Lto Warrant Agreement 8-K 4.4 3-K 4.3 Unit Purchase Option, dated February 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC 8-K 4.7 2 4.4 Amendment No. Lto Warrant Agreement 8-K 4.6 3 10.1 Indemnification Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.2 Earn-out Dscrow Agreement 8-K 10.2 3 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. B) 2 10.4 Ameeda and Resized Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.6 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.10 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.1 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with Pavid Bobson 8-K 10.16 3	3.1	Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation	8-K	3.1	3/25/2021		
Transfer & Trust Company and the Registrant 8-Kt 4.4.5 24.2 Anendment No. 10 Warrant Agreement 8-Kt 4.4.4 3 4.3 Unit Purchase Option, dated February 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC 8-Kt 4.7 2 4.4 Amendment No. 10 Unit Purchase Option 8-Kt 4.6 3 10.1 Indemnification Escrow Agreement 8-Kt 10.1 2 10.2 Earn-out Escrow Agreement 8-Kt 10.2 2 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement 8-Kt 10.6 2 3 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 8-Kt 10.6 3 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement sights Agreement 8-Kt 10.6 3 10.6 Form of PIPE Subscription Agreement 8-Kt 10.6 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement with Gregory Pollacane 8-Kt 10.1 3 10.9 Nuvee Holding Com. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex C 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with Gregory Pollacane 8-Kt 10.10 3 10.13	3.2		8-K	3.2	3/25/2021		
4.2 Amendment No. 116 Variant Agreement Unit Purchase Option, dated February 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC 8-K† 4.4 3 4.3 Unit Purchase Option, dated February 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC 8-K† 4.7 2 4.4 Amendment No. 110 Lint Purchase Option 8-K 4.6 3 10.1 Indemnification Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.2 Earn-out Escrow Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. B) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.6 Form of IPIE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.7 Form of IPIE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.8 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.1 Employment Agreement with David Robson 8-K 10.1 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with Regreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delavare and Nuve Corporation 8-K 10.13 3 10.14 Pa Accuistion Agreement, dated Agrel Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuve Corporation 8-K 10.16<	4.1						
4.3Unit Purchase Option, dated February 19, 2020, between the Registrant and Chardan Capital Markets LLC844.724.4Amendment No. 1to Unit Purchase Option8-K4.6310.1Indemnification Escrew Agreement8-K10.1310.2Earn-out Escrew Agreement8-K10.2310.3Form of Lock-Up Agreement8-K10.5310.4Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement8-K10.5310.5Stockholder's Agreement8-K10.6310.6Form of PIPE Subscription Agreement8-K10.6310.7Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement8-K10.6310.8Purchase and Option Agreement8-K10.1310.9Nurvee Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan424B3Annex A210.10Employment Agreement with Gregory Pollasne8-K10.10310.11Employment Agreement, with Gregory Pollasne8-K10.12310.12Employment Agreement, with Ted Smith8-K10.12310.14Indexariet Research Agreement, dated September 1. 2017, between8-K10.16310.15Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1. 2017, between8-K/10.16110.16Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank8-K/10.161110.17Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated April 3.0, 2020, issued by Nurve8-K/10.161 </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>4.5</td> <td>2/20/2020</td>				4.5	2/20/2020		
Chardan Capital Markes LLC 8-K† 4.7 2 4.4 Amendment No. 1 to Unit Purchase Option 8-K 4.6 3 10.1 Indemnification Escrew Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.2 Earn-out Escrew Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.4 Amended and Restatel Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 3 10.6 5 3			8-K	4.4	3/25/2021		
4.4 Amendment No. 1 to Unit Purchase Option 8-K 4.6 3 10.1 Indemnification Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.2 Earn-out Ecrow Agreement 8-K 10.2 3 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.6 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.6 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.7 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.9 Nuver Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex C 2 10.10 Employment Agreement with David Roben 8-K 10.10 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with David Roben 8-K 10.12 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with David Roben 8-K 10.13 3 10.14 Horomof Indemnification Agreement, dated September 1,	4.3						
10.1 Indemnification Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.1 3 10.2 Earn-out Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.2 3 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement 8-K 10.2 3 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.5 3 3 Amenex A (Ex. A) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 3 3 10.6 3 <					2/20/2020		
10.2 Enr.out Escrow Agreement 8-K 10.2 3 10.3 Form of Lock-Up Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. A) 2 10.4 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. B) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.5 3 10.6 Form of PIPE Subscription Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.7 Form of PIPE Subscription Agreement 8-K 10.7 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.8 3 Annex C 2 10.10 Employment Agreement with Cargory Pollasse 8-K 10.10 3 3 Nanex C 2 10.12 Employment Agreement with David Robson 8-K 10.12 3 3 10.12 3 3 4 10.13 3 3 10.14 10 4 4 4 10.13 3 3 10.16 2 10.13 3 10.16 2 4 10.17 3 10.14 IP Acquisition Agreement, with Ted Smith 3 4 10.16 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3/25/2021</td></t<>					3/25/2021		
10.3Form of Lock-Up Agreement24B3Annex A (Ex. A)210.4Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement424B3Annex A (Ex. B)210.5Stockholder's Agreement8-K10.6310.6Form of PIPE Subscription Agreement8-K10.6310.7Enrom of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement8-K10.6310.8Purchase and Option Agreement8-K10.7310.9Nuvve Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan424B3Annex C310.10Employment Agreement with Ted Smith8-K10.1310.11Employment Agreement with David Robson8-K10.11310.12Employment Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation8-K10.13310.14IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve CorporationS-410.17310.15#Amended and Restated Research Agreement dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP8-K/A10.1410.18#Development Services, Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., ad Levo Mobility LLC,8-K/A10.2410.19#Parent Letter, Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., ad Levo Mobility LLC,8-K/A10.3310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuve 					3/25/2021		
10.4 Amended and Restarded Registration Rights Agreement 424B3 Annex A (Ex. B) 2 10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.5 3 10.6 Form of PIEE Subscription Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.7 Form of PIEE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.7 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.8 3 10.9 Nuvee Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex C 2 10.10 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.10 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with David Robson 8-K 10.13 3 10.14 IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.16 3 10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.18 10.18 10.17# Amended and Restated Intrastructure LP 8-K/A 10.18 10.18 10.17# Amended and Restated Intrastructure LP 8-K/A 10.1 10 10.18# Development Servi					3/25/2021		
10.5 Stockholder's Agreement 8-K 10.5 3 10.6 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.7 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.7 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.8 3 10.9 Nurve Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex C 2 10.10 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.10 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.10 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.13 3 10.13 Form of Indennification Agreement 8-K 10.13 3 10.14 IP Acquisition Agreement, affective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuve Corporation 8-K 10.16 3 10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuve Corporation S-4 10.17 3 10.16 Payetheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuve Polytic Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuve Polytic Protection Program Note, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and bet					2/17/2021		
10.6 Form of PIPE Subscription Agreement 8-K 10.6 3 10.7 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.7 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.8 3 10.9 Nuvve Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex C 2 10.10 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.11 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.12 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with Ted Smith 8-K 10.13 3 10.14# IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuve Corporation S-4 10.16 3 10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuve Corporation S-4 10.16 3 10.17# Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.1 3 10.19# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuve Holding, Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.					2/17/2021		
10.7 Form of PIPE Registration Rights Agreement 8-K 10.7 3 10.8 Purchase and Option Agreement 8-K 10.8 3 10.9 Nuvve Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex C 2 10.10 Employment Agreement with Gregory Poilasne 8-K 10.10 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with Bari Robson 8-K 10.12 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with Dari Robson 8-K 10.13 3 10.14 IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.16 3 10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.17 3 10.16 Paycheck Protection Program. Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuve Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank S-4 10.18 3 10.17# Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings L P and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.1 4 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuve Holding Corp. and Levo					3/25/2021		
10.8Purchase and Option Agreement8-K10.8310.9Nuvve Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan424B3Annex C210.10Employment Agreement with Gregovy.Poilasne8-K10.10310.11Employment Agreement with David Robson8-K10.11310.12Employment Agreement with David Robson8-K10.12310.13Form of Indemnification Agreement8-K10.13310.14#IP. Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation8-410.16310.15#Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation8-410.17310.16Paycheck. Protection. Program. Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvre Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank8-410.18310.17#Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.1310.18#Development.Services. Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.2310.20#Beard Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.4310.20#Beard Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nu					3/25/2021		
10.9 Nuvve Holding Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan 424B3 Annex C 2 10.10 Employment Agreement with Gregory Pollasne 8-K 10.10 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with Gregory Pollasne 8-K 10.11 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with Gregory Pollasne 8-K 10.12 3 10.13 Form of Indermification Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation 8-K 10.13 3 10.14# IP Acquisition Agreement, dated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.16 3 10.16 Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank S-4 10.18 3 10.17# Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP 8-K/A 10.1 3 10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp, and Levo Mobility LLC, 8-K/A 10.2 3 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp, and Levo Mobility LLC, 8-K/A					3/25/2021		
10.10 Employment Agreement with Gregory Poilasne 8-K 10.10 3 10.11 Employment Agreement with David Robson 8-K 10.11 3 10.12 Employment Agreement with David Robson 8-K 10.12 3 10.13 Form of Indemnification Agreement 8-K 10.13 3 10.14# IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.16 3 10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.17 3 10.16 Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank S-4 10.18 3 10.17# Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation. Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.1 4 10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.3 4 10.20# Hoad Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.3 4 10.20# Board Rights Agreement					3/25/2021		
10.11Employment Agreement with Ted Smith8-K10.11310.12Employment Agreement with David Robson8-K10.12310.13Form of Indemnification Agreement8-K10.13310.14#IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation8-K10.16310.15#Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve CorporationS-410.16310.16Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley BankS-410.18310.17#Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.1410.19#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.2410.20#Baard Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP8-K/A10.3410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve8-K/A10.4410.20#Baard Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP8-K/A10.4410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 20					2/17/2021		
10.12 Employment Agreement with David Robson 8-K 10.12 3 10.13 Form of Indemnification Agreement 8-K 10.13 3 10.14# IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.16 3 10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.17 3 10.16 Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank S-4 10.18 3 10.17# Amended and Restated Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings S-4 10.18 3 10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.2 4 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.3 4 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 4 10.21# Intellectual					3/25/2021		
10.13Form of Indemnification Agreement8-K10.13310.14#IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve CorporationS-410.16310.15#Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve CorporationS-410.16310.16Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley BankS-410.18310.17#Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.1410.18#Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp, and Levo Mobility LLC,8-K/A10.2410.20#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp, and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.3410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp, and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.4410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp, and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.4410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.4431.1Rules					3/25/2021		
10.14# IP Acquisition Agreement, effective November 2, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.16 10.15 10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.17 10.16 10.16 Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank S-4 10.17 10.18 10.17# Amended and Restated Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings S-4 10.1 10.18 10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.2 8 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.3 4 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 3 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvre Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.4 3 10.21# <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3/25/2021</td></td<>					3/25/2021		
Delaware and Nuvve CorporationS-410.1610.15#Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve CorporationS-410.1710.16Baycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvre Corporation to Silicon Valley BankS-410.1810.17#Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.110.18#Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.210.19#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvre Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvre Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.410.21#Intelectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer*32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+32.2Section 1350 Cert			8-K	10.13	3/25/2021		
10.15# Amended and Restated Research Agreement, dated September 1, 2017, between University of Delaware and Nuvve Corporation S-4 10.17 10.16 Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank S-4 10.18 10.17# Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.1 10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp., and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.2 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.2 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.3 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.5 11.1	10.14#		C 4	10.10	2/4/2021		
University of Delaware and Nuvve CorporationS-410.17110.16Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley BankS-410.1810.17#Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.110.18#Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.210.19#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer 32.2***32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer 32.2**32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer 32.2**32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer 32.2*32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer 32.2*32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer 32.2*32.2Section 1350 Certifi	10.15//		5-4	10.16	2/4/2021		
10.16 Paycheck Protection Program Note, dated April 30, 2020, issued by Nuvve Corporation to Silicon Valley Bank S-4 10.18 10.17# Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.1 10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.2 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.3 3 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 3 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.5 3 31.1 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer * * 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer * * 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + * 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer +	10.15#		6.4	10.17	2/4/2021		
Corporation to Silicon Valley BankS-410.1810.17#Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.110.18#Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.210.19#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	10.10		5-4	10.17	2/4/2021		
10.17# Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement for Levo, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP. 8-K/A 10.1 10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp, and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.2 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.3 32 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 32 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 32 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.5 32 31.1 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer * * 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer * 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + * * * 101.INS Inline XBRL Instanc	10.16		C 4	10.10	2/4/2021		
of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Corporation, Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.110.18#Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.210.19#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.3310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.4310.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.5331.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer****32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+***101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+*	10 17#		5-4	10.18	2/4/2021		
LP and Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP.8-K/A10.1310.18#Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.210.19#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.3310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.4310.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.5331.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer****32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer****101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+**	10.1/#						
10.18# Development Services Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between 8-K/A 10.2 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve 8-K/A 10.3 10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve 8-K/A 10.3 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve 8-K/A 10.3 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve 8-K/A 10.4 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.5 31.1 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer * 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer * 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + 101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL +			0 12/4	10.1	0/0/2021		
Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.210.19#Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	10 10#		8-K/A	10.1	8/8/2021		
10.19# Parent Letter Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.3 10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.5 31.1 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer * 31.2 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer * 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + 101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL +	10.10#		0 V/A	10.2	8/8/2021		
Holding Corp., Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP, Evolve Transition Infrastructure LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*31.2Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer+32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	10 10#		0- N /A	10.2	0/0/2021		
LP and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.310.20#Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*31.2Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer*32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	10.19#						
10.20# Board Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and among Nuvve Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP. 8-K/A 10.4 10.21# Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.5 31.1 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer * 31.2 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer * 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer + 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + 101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL +			0 V/A	10.2	8/8/2021		
Holding Corp. and Stonepeak Rocket Holdings LP.8-K/A10.410.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*31.2Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer*32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	10 20#		0-K/A	10.5	0/0/2021		
10.21#Intellectual Property License and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2021, by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC.8-K/A10.531.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*31.2Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer*32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	10.20#		0 12/4	10.4	0/0/2021		
by and between Nuvve Holding Corp. and Levo Mobility LLC. 8-K/A 10.5 8 31.1 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer * * 31.2 Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer * * 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer + * 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + * 101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL +	10.01#		8-K/A	10.4	8/8/2021		
31.1Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*31.2Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer*32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	10.21#		ο ν/Λ	10 E	8/8/2021		
31.2Rules 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer*32.1Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer+32.2Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer+101.INSInline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL+	21.1			10.5	0/0/2021		
32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer + 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + 101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL + document. + +							
32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer + 101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL + document. + +							
101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL + document.							
Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL + document.	32.2		Ŧ				
document.	101.INS	Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the					
		Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL	+				
101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document +		document.					
	101.SCH	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document	+				
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document +	101.CAL	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document	+				
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document +	101.DEF		+				
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document +	101.LAB	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document	+				
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document +	101.PRE		+				
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page interactive data file does not	104	Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page interactive data file does not					
appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the +			+				
Inline XBRL document.		Inline XBRL document.					

* Filed herewith.

+ Furnished herewith.

† Filed by Newborn Acquisition Corp., the predecessor to the registrant.

Certain confidential portions of this exhibit were omitted by means of marking such portions with asterisks because the identified confidential portions (i) are not material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed.

SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

August 13, 2021

NUVVE HOLDING CORP.

By: /s/ Gregory Poilasne

Gregory Poilasne Chief Executive Officer